
 
 

HOMES FOR GOOD BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING 
Wednesday, October 25th, 2023  

 
Table Of Contents 

(Click On Each Agenda Item to Navigate to That Section) 
 

AGENDA…………………………………………………………………………………………. Page 2  

  

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REPORT…………………………………………………………… 

 

Page 4 

QUARTER 4 EXCELLENCE AWARDS………………..……………………………………… Page 5 

  

SEPTEMBER 27TH, 2023 MINUTES………………..………………………………………. Page 6 

  

ORDER 23-25-10-01H………….……………………………………………………………. 

In the Matter of Updating the Administrative Plan and Admissions & Continued 

Occupancy (ACOP)  - Removal from the Waiting List   

Page 26 

  

PRESENTATION……………………………………………………………………………….. 

Resident Commissioner Recruitment Timeline   

Page 31 

  

ORDER 23-25-10-02H……………………………………………………………………….. 

In the Matter of Non-Represented Classification & Compensation Study and 

Recommendation   

Page 33 

  

PRESENTATION……………………………………………………………………………….. 

2023 Executive Director Performance Evaluation Process   

Page 81 

 



AGENDA 

Homes for Good Housing Agency 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

Location of the meeting: 

Zoom 

 

This meeting will be held virtually via public video call and conference line (see details below). 
 

 

Wednesday, October 25th, 2023, at 1:30pm   

The October 25th, 2023, Homes for Good Board of Commissioners meeting will be via a public video call 

with dial-in capacity. The public will be able to join the call, give public comment and listen to the call.  

  

Join Zoom Meeting: 

 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88069630164  

 

1. PUBLIC COMMENTS  

Maximum time 30 minutes: Speakers will be taken in the order in which they sign up and will be limited 

to 3-minutes per public comments. If the number wishing to testify exceeds 10 speakers, then 

additional speakers may be allowed if the chair determines that time permits or may be taken at a later 

time. 

 

PLEASE NOTE: The Homes for Good Board of Commissioners is a policy advisory body to Homes for 

Good and is not designated to resolve issues in public meeting. The Board will not discuss or make 

decisions immediately on any issue presented.  

 

2. COMMISSIONERS' RESPONSE TO PUBLIC COMMENTS AND/OR OTHER ISSUES 

AND REMONSTRANCE (2 min. limit per commissioner) 

 

3. ADJUSTMENTS TO THE AGENDA 

 

4. COMMISSIONERS’ BUSINESS 

 

5. EMERGENCY BUSINESS 

 

6. EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 

 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88069630164


 

7. ADMINISTRATION 

A. Executive Director Report  

B. Quarter 4 Excellence Awards  

 

8. CONSENT AGENDA 

A. Approval of 09/27/2023 Board Meeting Minutes  

 

9. ORDER 23-25-10-01H  

In the Matter of Updating the Administrative Plan and Admissions and Continued Occupancy (ACOP) – 

Removal from the Waiting List  

(Beth Ochs, Rent Assistance Division Director) (Estimated 15 minutes)  

 

10. PRESENTATION  

Resident Commissioner Recruitment Timeline  

(Jacob Fox, Executive Director) (Estimated 5 minutes)  

 

11. ORDER 23-25-10-02H  

In the Matter of Non-Represented Classification & Compensation Study and Recommendation   

(Bailey McEuen, Human Resources Director) (Estimated 25 minutes)  

 

12. PRESENTATION  

2023 Executive Director Performance Evaluation Process  

(Bailey McEuen, Human Resources Director) (Estimated 25 minutes)  

 

13.  OTHER BUSINESS 

 

Adjourn. 

 

 

 

 



O C T O B E R  2 0 2 3EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REPORT

On October 4th Wakan, Jasmine and I were able to
tour The Oaks at 14th, The Keystone, The Nel and
Parkview Terrace with a group of Tr i l l ium leaders
including the CEO.  It  was an opportunity to share
the improved health outcomes that happen when
people who are experiencing chronic homelessness
move into the permanent support ive housing (PSH)
apartment communit ies.  It  was also an opportunity
to share the f inancial  chal lenges that our PSH
communit ies are facing and the subsequent negat ive
f inancial  impacts that are affect ing our broader
organizat ion.  We have submitted grant funding
requests to Tr i l l ium for The Commons on MLK and
for Br idges on Broadway so we are hopeful that
tel l ing the story of our experience wi l l  result  in
addit ional operat ing funding for our PSH
communit ies

As mentioned in my Board Report from August there
are some signif icant f inancial  chal lenges in our 20
affordable apartment communit ies that are managed
by 3rd party management companies that we are
act ively working to address.  One of the s ignif icant
factors over the past year is the number of vacancies
and how long they have been vacant.  Current ly we
have 29 vacancies represent ing 3.39% of the
portfol io compounded by the fact that on average
these units have been vacant for 109 days.  

Another f inancial  chal lenge, the scope of which only
recent ly became clear, is rent col lect ion and other
accounts receivable col lect ions. One management
company is systemical ly problematic,  and the other
company has room for improvement at a couple of
propert ies.  In terms of addressing these issues
Ei leen, Steve and I jo ined our asset management
team members along with the owners of the 3rd
party management companies on September 29th to
review property by property f inancial  reports. We
wanted to ensure we were al l  on the same page in
terms of the specif ic improvements that needed to be
made in the turning and rent ing vacant units and in
managing accounts receivables.  Addit ional ly,  we
provided an al l -day training on October 5th to al l  3rd
party management company staff  that manage our
propert ies to set some performance expectat ions
from the perspect ive of an owner. 

On October 16th we presented f inancial
information to our Board Finance Committee
related to the scope of the accounts receivable
arrearages, however, at the September 29th
meeting the owners of the 3rd party management
companies communicated that they need to review
the f inancial  information provided in their reports
for accuracy.  We committed to coordinat ing with
the 3rd party management companies as they
review their f inancial  reports for accuracy and
providing an update to the Board Finance
Committee at the December meeting

On October 10th we were contacted by Pacif ic
Source leadership and asked for an updated pre-
development project l ist  that wi l l  be attached to
the loan documents for the pre-development loan
fund.  We were informed that the loan documents
are very c lose to being complete.  Because this
wi l l  be the f i rst loan fund of i ts type in Oregon we
are very excited to see results of our advocacy
efforts for a fund such as this and for the
partnership with Pacif ic Source that wi l l  br ing i t  to
a real i ty





MINUTES 

Homes for Good Housing Agency       

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

________________________________________ 

Wednesday, September 27th, 2023, at 1:30 p.m. 

Homes for Good conducted the September 27th,2023, meeting in person The Oaks on 14th 
Community Room and via a public video call with dial-in capacity. The public was able to join the 
call, give public comment, and listen to the call. 

CALL TO ORDER 

Board Members Present: 
Heather Buch 

Michelle Thurston 

Pat Farr 

Kirk Strohman 

Chloe Chapman 

Larissa Ennis 

Joel Iboa  

Board Members Absent: 
Justin Sandoval 

QUORUM MET 



1. PUBLIC COMMENT  
Commenter I:  

Section 8 Voucher Holder  
 

OVERVIEW 

A recent recipient of a Housing Choice Voucher began the process of having Homes for Good 
inspect her current residence, that she’s lived in for quite some time.  

 
The unit passed the inspection, but the owner of the property is not eligible to rent to Section 8 

voucher holders as they have  been barred by HUD and the Homes for Good’s Housing Choice 

Voucher Program.  
 

Would like to have the property owner removed from this list so as to continue living in her 
residence while utilizing her Housing Choice Voucher. Additionally, documents defining “Aging in 

Place” were provided [see attachments].  
 

Commenter II:  

Property Owner  
 

OVERVIEW 

The property owner that is currently on the HUD and Homes for Good barred landlord list. They 
would like to be removed from this list to be able to provide housing to senior Housing Choice 

Voucher holders.  
 

2. COMMISSIONERS' RESPONSE TO PUBLIC COMMENTS AND/OR OTHER ISSUES 
AND REMONSTRANCE  
The Board of Commissioners and attendees took a moment of silence to honor former Chair, Char 

Reavis and to acknowledge her passing.  
 

3. ADJUSTMENTS TO THE AGENDA  
None 

 

4. COMMISSIONERS’ BUSINESS  
None 

 

5. EMERGENCY BUSINESS  
None 

 

6. EXECUTIVE SESSION 

None 
 

7. ADMINISTRATION  

A. Executive Director Report 

Jacob Fox discussed the celebration of life for Char Reavis. Homes for Good staff, Board 
members and family were in attendance.   

The monthly Board Finance Subcommittee meeting was held with a focus on the budget 
document. All Board members were invited, and the time was extended to deep dive into the 
financial reports.  



Kirk Strohman during the subcommittee engagement encouraged Homes for Good to think 
strategically about how to sustainably utilize the scattered site proceeds. Homes for Good 

leadership, finance team and the Board will have a work session to focus on strategic planning 
for 2024.  

The finance team meets with the auditors, Berman Hopkins, on a weekly basis to review 
audited financial statements in preparation for the next fiscal year audit and transition to Yardi 
software.  

Discussion Themes 

▪ Split the Board Work Session into two ½ days (January/February 2024) 
▪ Agenda will be prepared during the Finance Subcommittee meetings  

B. 2024 Board Calendar  

Discussion Themes 

▪ Adjust the finance subcommittee dates to eliminate conflict with Resident Advisory 
Board meetings  

▪ Updated calendar invites will be sent out to all Board members for 2024   

8. CONSENT AGENDA  
A. Approval of 08/30/2023 Board Meeting Minutes  

 

Vote Tabulations 

Motion: Michelle Thurston  

Second: Kirk Strohman  

Discussion: None  

 

Ayes: Heather Buch, Michelle Thurston, Kirk Strohman, Chloe Chapman, Larissa Ennis, Joel 

Iboa, Pat Farr  

Abstain: None 

Excused: Justin Sandoval  

The 09/27/2023 Consent Agenda was approved [7/0/1] 

________________________________________ 

 

BOARD ORDER(S) 

________________________________________ 

9. ORDER 23-27-09-01H: In the Matter of Approving the Capital Fund Program 

Significant Amendment Statement  

Real Estate Development Director, Steve Ochs Presenting 

 

 

 



Overview 

In July 2023 the Board approved the Capital Fund 5-Year Action Plan. When this plan was submitted 

to HUD, it was noted that Homes for Good needed to adopt a Significant Amendment Statement 

specific to the Capital Projects 5-Year Action  Plan. The board order outlines specific significant 

amendments or modifications that would require a public process.  

  

Discussion Themes 

▪ Appreciation for communication and transparency around the Capital Projects 5-Year Action Plan 

 

Vote Tabulations 

Motion: Michelle Thurston 

Second: Kirk Strohman  

Discussion: None  

 

Ayes: Heather Buch, Michelle Thurston, Kirk Strohman, Chloe Chapman, Larissa Ennis, Joel 

Iboa, Pat Farr  

Abstain: None 

Absent: Justin Sandoval 

ORDER 23-27-09-01H was approved [7/0/1] 

 

10. ORDER 23-27-09-02H: In the Matter of Approving Contract 23-P-0036 

(Architectural Services) for Bridges on Broadway  

Project Development Manager, Nora Cronin Presenting 

 

Overview 

Bridges on Broadway was a former Red Lion Hotel purchased by Lane County to provide temporary 

housing to experiencing homelessness, at risk of homelessness or displaced by the wildfires in 2021.  

In March 2023 Homes for Good received approval for Project-Based Voucher (PBV) rental assistance 

for all 57 income-qualified units at this site.   

 

The funding received has permitted the development to move forward and start construction in June 

2024 – therefore necessitating the execution of the contract with Pinnacle Architecture to start work.  

 

 

Vote Tabulations 

Motion: Michelle Thurston  

Second: Chloe Tirabasso  

Discussion: None  

 

Ayes: Heather Buch, Michelle Thurston, Kirk Strohman, Chloe Chapman, Larissa Ennis, Joel 

Iboa, Pat Farr  

Abstain: None 

Absent: Justin Sandoval 

ORDER 23-27-09-02H was approved [7/0/1] 
 

 
 

 



________________________________________ 

 

PRESENTATION 

________________________________________ 

11. PRESENTATION: Ground Source Heat Pump Proposal  

Energy Services Division Director, Esteban Montero Chacon Presenting  
 

Overview 

[see presentation in the Board materials]  

Discussion Themes 

▪ Invasiveness of the drilling process  

▪ What repairs (as a result) of the drilling process are covered in the cost  

▪ Potential unintended ecological consequences of adding heat into the ground  

▪ Selection process for homes  

▪ Government incentives  

▪ Disaster preparedness and impact  

▪ Liabilities  

▪ District heating  

▪ Incorporation into new Homes for Good developments 

 

No action needed. 

________________________________________ 

 

BOARD ORDER(S) 

________________________________________ 

12. ORDER 23-27-09-03H: In the Matter Approving the Fiscal Year 2024 Budget   

Executive Director, Jacob Fox Presenting  

 

Overview 

2024 BUDGET PRIORITIES  

▪ Financial management systems  

▪ Scattered Site Proceeds strategically invested  

▪ Moving to Work  

▪ Resource development/Grant writing  

 

 

[see document in the Board materials]  

 



Discussion Themes 

▪ Concern on approval of a deficit budget  

▪ Use of Yardi to assist in budget reporting  

▪ Break even properties  – long-term planning with cost increases  

▪ Impact of government shutdown on Homes for Good  

▪ Current HUD field office contacts  

▪ Release budget documents at least a month prior to Board discussion 

▪ Impact of staff turnover especially Leadership Team members 

 

Vote Tabulations 

Motion: Kirk Strohman 

Second: Chloe Chapman  

Discussion: None  

 

Ayes: Heather Buch, Michelle Thurston, Kirk Strohman, Chloe Chapman, Larissa Ennis, Joel 

Iboa, Pat Farr  

Abstain: None 

Absent: Justin Sandoval 

ORDER 23-27-09-03H was approved [7/0/1] 

 
 

13. ORDER 23-27-09-04H: In the Matter of Approving the Fiscal Year 2024 Public 

Housing Operating Budget  
Supportive Housing Director, Wakan Alferes Presenting  

 

Overview 

HUD requires the Public Housing budget be approved separately from the entire Agency budget.  

 

[see document in the Board materials]  

 

Vote Tabulations 

Motion: Michelle Thurston  

Second: Chloe Chapman  

Discussion: None  

 

Ayes: Heather Buch, Michelle Thurston, Kirk Strohman, Chloe Chapman, Larissa Ennis, Joel 

Iboa, Pat Farr  

Abstain: None 

Absent: Justin Sandoval 

ORDER 23-27-09-04H was approved [7/0/1] 

 
14. OTHER BUSINESS 

None 

 
  

Meeting adjourned at 3:59 p.m.  
Minutes Taken By: Jasmine Leary 

































 
 

HOMES FOR GOOD MEMORANDUM 
 

TO: Homes for Good Board of Commissioners 

 

FROM: Beth Ochs, Rent Assistance Division Director    

 

TITLE:  Updating the Administrative Plan and Admissions and Continued Occupancy 
(ACOP) – Removal from the Waiting List   

 

DATE:     October 25, 2023   

_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
MOTION:   

Seeking Board Approval to:  

• Update the Administrative Plan and ACOP to remove duplicate entry of an applicant on the same waiting 

list. Update Administrative Plan and ACOP to clarify how applicants are removed from a waiting list.  

DISCUSSION: 

 
A. Issue 

 
Homes for Good is currently converting to a new software, Yardi. Yardi’s system provides for single 
placement on a waiting list. This deviates from our current software, HAB. With the conversion to Yardi 
Homes for Good requests its Administrative Plan and ACOP to align with the functions of Yardi.   

 
B. Background 

 
Under HAB an applicant could be on the same waitlist multiple times. For example, an applicant could 
be random selection #500 and local preference referral #5 on the same waitlist.  
 
Under HAB, once an applicant obtained housing from said waitlist all of their placements from that 
waitlist were removed. For example, housing is obtained from local preference #5. In turn random 
selection #500 is removed from the waiting list.  

 
C. Analysis 

 
There are 511 applicants who are on a waitlist more than once.  
 
Homes for Good intends to send those applicants written notification that they have retained their 
highest placement on the waiting list and any duplicate entries have been removed.  
 
This will not impact an applicant’s placement on another waiting list. Meaning, an applicant can be on 
multiple waiting lists with Homes for Good, just not the same waiting list more than once.  



 

 
 

D. Furtherance of the Strategic Equity Plan 
 

This request does not have a direct or indirect correlation to our Strategic Equity Plan.  
 

E. Alternatives & Other Options 
 

Homes for Good could choose to maintain a waitlist outside of Yardi. This would require use of an 
external system that would need to be maintained and would not be accessible through Yardi’s portal 
system. The system in which waitlists will be accessed by applicants.  

 
 

F. Timing & Implementation 
 

Following Board Approval:  
 
Homes for Good will update its Administrative Plan and 
ACOP.  
 
Homes for Good will notify applicants of their duplicate 
removal from a waiting list.  

 
G. Recommendation 

 
Homes for Good recommends the board approve the request to update the Administrative Plan and 

ACOP to remove duplicate entry of an applicant on the same waiting list. Update Administrative Plan 

and ACOP to clarify how applicants are removed from a waiting list.   

 
H. Follow Up 

 
None 

 
I. Attachments 

 
None 

 

 
 



 
 
 

IN THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE 

HOMES FOR GOOD HOUSING AGENCY, OF LANE COUNTY OREGON 

 

 

ORDER 23-25-10-01H In the Matter of Updating the Housing Choice 

Voucher Administrative Plan and Admissions 

and Continued Occupancy (ACOP), Removal 

from the Waiting List.  

 

 WHEREAS, Homes for Good is required by HUD to establish policies that describe the 
circumstances under which applicants will be removed from a waiting list.   
   
 
NOW IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED THAT:  

The Housing Choice Voucher Administrative Plan for Fiscal Year 2024 shall be 

revised as follows:  

Page 4-12 is amended to state:  

 Removal from the Waiting List  

PHA Policy: 

 If at any time an applicant family is on the waiting list, the PHA determines that the 
 family is not eligible for assistance (see Chapter 3), the family will be removed from the 
 waiting list. 
  
 If a family is removed from the waiting list because the PHA has determined the family 
is not eligible for assistance, a notice will be sent to the family’s address of record as 
well as to any alternate address provided on the initial application. The notice will 
state the reasons the family was removed from the waiting list and will inform the 
family how to request an informal review regarding the PHA’s decision (see Chapter 16) 
[24 CFR982.201(f)]. 

 Applicant families may be on a program specific tenant-based or project-based voucher 
waitlist no more than once. If applicant family accepts subsidy they will be removed 
from said waitlist. The family will continue to remain on any other tenant- based or 
project-based voucher waitlists they had applied for and were placed on.  

 

The Admissions and Continued Occupancy (ACOP) for Fiscal Year 2024 shall be 
revised as follows: 

Page 4-13 is amended to state: 

  

Removal from the Waiting List 



PHA Policy: 

If the PHA determines that the family is not eligible for admission (see Chapter 3) at 
any time while the family is on the waiting list the family will be removed from the 
waiting list. 

If a family is removed from the waiting list because the PHA has determined the family 
is not eligible for admission, a notice will be sent to the family’s address of record as 
well as to any alternate address provided on the initial application. The notice will state 
the reasons the family was removed from the waiting list and will inform the family how 
to request an informal hearing regarding the PHA’s decision (see Chapter 14) [24 CFR 
960.208(a)]. 

A family may be on a waitlist no more than once. If applicant family accepts subsidy 
they will be removed from said waitlist. The family will continue to remain on any other 
waitlists they had applied for and were placed on. 

The PHA will remove an applicant from the waiting list upon request by the applicant 
family. In such cases no informal hearing is required. 

If the applicant does not provide, within the time stated on the PHA letter, required 
documentation necessary for the PHA to determine eligibility, and the PHA is therefore 
unable to determine eligibility, the applicant will be removed from the waiting list. 

 

 
DATED this                day of                                             , 2023 

 

__________________________________________________   

Vice-Chair, Homes for Good Board of Commissioners  

 

__________________________________________________   

Secretary, Homes for Good Board of Commissioners    





 
 

2024 Homes for Good Board of Commissioners 
Resident Commissioner Recruitment Timeline 

 
October 2023 
 12th- Resident Advisory Board (RAB) Meeting 

• Communications Team goes to RAB and talks about application + process   
Week of 16th- Application Opens 

• All Resident Email Communication 
• Targeted email to Family Self-Sufficiency (FSS) clients sent from FSS 

Coordinators  
 25th- Homes for Good Board Meeting 

• Commissioners volunteer to be part of the Selection Committee.  
 
November 2023 
 17th- Applications Close 

20th – 22nd – Application Review 
• Reaching out to schedule interviews 
• Sending materials to the Selection Committee  

 23rd + 24th- Thanksgiving Holiday Closure  
 27th- 1st- Interviews (Virtual)  
  
December 2023 

Week of 4th- Finalize Recommendation 
• Additional Interviews if Necessary 

8th- Board Materials Due for Homes for Good Board Meeting  
12th- Board Materials Published Publicly  
20th- Homes for Good Board Meeting  

• Recommendation to be approved by Board  
January 2024 
 9th- Lane County Board of Commissioner’s Meeting 

• New Board Member Approved by Lane County 
24th - Homes for Good Board Meeting 

• New Board Member joins Homes for Good Board of Commissioners  
 





 
 

TO:  Homes for Good Board of Commissioners  

FROM: Bailey McEuen, Human Resources Director 

TITLE: In the Matter of Non-Represented Classification & Compensation Study and 

Recommendation 

DATE:  October 25, 2023   

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

MOTION:   

It is moved that the Homes for Good Board of Commissioners approve the recommended 

updates to Homes for Good’s Non-Represented Salary Schedule based on recommendations 

resulting from the 2023 Non-Represented Classification & Compensation Study.  

DISCUSSION: 

A. Issue 

Homes for Good currently lags the market in terms of salary compensation for the majority 

of non-represented classifications. It’s recommended that the Agency adopt a compensation 

strategy and practice that establishes a clear job classification system, enhancing 

organizational efficiency, employee engagement & satisfaction, and that the Agency 

establishes a fair, equitable and sustainable compensation structure for non-represented 

employees  that meets market expectations in terms of pay.  

 

B. Background 

Homes for Good engaged with a third-party vendor to complete a Classification & 

Compensation Study in 2017, resulting in the current framework and salary schedule. Since 

the last study, the Agency has grown significantly in programs & services offered, our 

financial position, and full-time equivalent employees (FTE). There are also economic and 

strategic factors driving the need for a thorough classification & compensation study.  

 

Programs & Services 

The study highlights the Agency’s growth in new Rent Assistance Programs, Resident 

Services expansion to third party managed sites, and the addition of Permanent Supportive 

Housing (PSH) Case Management services. 

 

Financial Growth 

The Study also highlights the rapid growth in the Agency’s financial position, with the net 

position increasing by 88% between 2017 and 2022, as reflected in the Audited Financials. 

 

 

 



Economic Climate 

The study makes reference to several economic factors driving the recommendations, such 

as the rising cost of living, increased demand for talent and wage compression the Agency 

is experiencing due to two collective bargaining agreements being ratified since non-

represented compensation was last reviewed and updated.  

 

Staffing Levels 

The study notes that staffing levels have increased substantially since the last study, with 

growth in FTE of approximately 40%.  

 

Strategic Factors 

Lastly, the study points out several strategic factors impacting the recommendation. Most 

notably, concerns have been raised by the Board of Commissioners about recruitment, 

retention and compensation during executive reviews and leadership recruitment processes, 

indicating a need to assess the competitiveness of our compensation package.  

 

C. Analysis 

The study confirms that Homes for Good lags the market in terms of salary compensation 

for most non-represented classifications, which are largely supervisory and leadership 

positions. If not addressed, lagging salaries can impact retention causing unwanted and 

costly turnover of key positions and pose challenges in recruiting & succession planning.  

 

To bring compensation into alignment with market competitors, it’s recommended that 

Homes for Good adopt the updated Non-Represented Compensation Schedule (Schedule B), 

as outlined in the Recommendations section of the study.  

 

Recommendations also include: 

 

• Adjustments to internal placement for the Communications Specialist, Rent 

Assistance Supervisor, Finance Manager, Human Resources Director, IT Director, 

Finance Director & Real Estate Development Director classifications  

• Add a Deputy Director classification 

• Reclassifying the ADA & HR Coordinator to Accommodations Coordinator and 

eliminating Confidential job duties, moving the role to the represented Schedule A 

• Adding a Payroll & Human Resources Specialist classification  

• Placement of employees within their classification’s assigned grade on the updated 

schedule at the step that most closely matches their current rate of pay but does not 

result in a pay decrease 

• Implementing a longevity increase component to recognize long term employees 

• Annual cost of living adjustments to the plan based on the year over year change in 

the CPI-U Western Region, June to June, with a maximum COLA of 5% 

• Maintenance & periodic review of the plan to include a classification & compensation 

review every three to five years to ensure competitiveness and alignment with 

Homes for Good’s strategic goals 

Financial Impact Analysis 



In terms of financial impact, with the recommendation to place employees at the step nearest 
their current salary, the financial impact of updating the non-represented salary scheduled will 
be approximately $58,000 for FY24, which was reflected in the approved FY24 budget. 
 
In subsequent fiscal years, it’s recommended that cost of living adjustments (COLAs) be 
incorporated into the budget using the year over year change in the CPI-U Western Region, 
June to June, allowing the board to review and approve the increase as part of the budgeting 
process. 
 
Current non-represented COLAs are based on the year over year change in CPI-U Western 

Region, September to September, and are included in budgeting assumptions each year and 

approved with the budget. The rationale for changing this is to make timelier budgeting 

assumptions, as the CPI is a lagging indicator, meaning the year over year change from 

September to September is not released until mid-October. By using the year over year change 

in CPI from June to June, we will know what the COLA will be for the subsequent fiscal year in 

July, eliminating the need to estimate adjustments in the budgeting process.  

D. Furtherance of the Strategic Equity Plan 

The recommended changes to Homes for Good’s non-represented compensation further the 

Strategic Equity Plan by ensuring fair, equitable and sustainable pay for Agency leaders. We 

also recognize that with growth in programs, FTE and the implementation of the Strategic 

Equity Plan, we’re asking our leaders to grow in terms of sophistication compared to the 

expectations of them when the current framework was implemented in 2017.  

 

E. Alternatives & Other Options 

As an alternative to approving changes to the non-represented salary schedule as outlined 

in the study, the board could not approve the order and retain the current lagging salary 

schedule for non-represented classifications. Consequences for not approving the 

recommended changes could be an increase in turnover for key leadership positions, as 

comparable roles and similarly situated public agencies currently offer consistently higher 

salaries compared to Homes for Good’s current compensation package.  

 

F. Timing & Implementation 

It’s recommended that the proposed changes be implemented at the beginning of the pay 

period following approval and adoption (November 5, 2023). 

 

G. Recommendation 

It is recommended that the Board of Commissioners approve the recommended changes to 

Homes for Good’s non-represented salary schedule.  

 

H. Follow Up 

If the recommended changes are adopted, Human Resources will document the approved 

changes to employee salaries and implement the changes. 

 

I. Attachments 

2023 Non-Represented Compensation Study  



NON REPRESENTED

CLASSIFICATIONCLASSIFICATION
& COMPENSATION& COMPENSATION
STUDYSTUDY

OCTOBER 2023

Prepared by Bailey McEuen,
Human Resources Director



TABLE OF CONTENTSTABLE OF CONTENTS
Executive Summary

     Introduction

     Objective

     Methodology

     Data Analysis

     Recommendation Summary

Compensation Strategy Overview

Background of Non-Represented Compensation Framework

Rational of the Study

     Figure 1: CPI-U Western Region 12 Month Change

     Figure 2: Staffing Levels 2018 - Current

Objectives

Methodology

     Data Collection

     Market Analysis

     Benchmarking

     Geographical Context

     Table 1: Cost of Labor

Analysis

     Job Classification Analysis

     Table 2: Current Internal Placement

     Median Salary Comparison by Classification

     Table 3: Heat Map of Compa Rations - Current

     Figure 3: Cash Compensation Scatter Plot Comparison

     Benefits & Non-Cash Compensation

Recommendations

     Internal Placement & Leveling

     Table 4: Recommended Internal Placement

     Cash Compensation

     Table 5: Recommended Salary Schedule

     Merit Increases

     Longevity Incentive Pay

     Cost of Living Adjustments (COLAs)

     Employee Placement

     Maintenance & Periodica Review

     Table 6: Compa Ratio Heat Map Post Implementation

1

1

1

1

1

2

3

3

4

5

6

7

8

8

9

11

13

13

14

14

14

15

15

16

17

17

17

19

20

21

22

22

22

23

23

24



TABLE OF CONTENTSTABLE OF CONTENTS
Appendix A: Recommended Schedule B

Appendix B: Raw Survey Data by Classification

Appendix C: Compa Ration Heat Maps - Before & After

Appendix D: Comparison 

Appendix E: Internal Placement & Leveling Matrix

Appendix F: Energy Services Director Data

Appendix G: Job Descriptions

Tables & Figures

Works Cited & Source Documents

25

26

31

33

36
37

38

39

40



EXECUTIVE SUMMARYEXECUTIVE SUMMARY
This Classification and Compensation Study report presents a comprehensive analysis and

strategic recommendations to align compensation practices with the agency's strategic goals,

market pay standards, and non-cash compensation benefits. The study recognizes the

imperative need to attract and retain top talent while considering budget constraints and

evolving market dynamics.

Introduction
The study reviews the agency's non-represented compensation framework, last assessed in

2017. Since then, significant growth in programs, services, and staffing levels has necessitated

an evaluation of the classification and compensation structure. Shifts in the ratio of

represented staff to leaders and strategic factors, such as the response to COVID-19 and

governance restructuring, further highlight the need for this study. The growing concerns

about recruitment, retention, and compensation indicate the importance of assessing the

competitiveness of compensation packages. Financial growth, with a doubling of the budget

since 2017, underscores the need to ensure sustainable and competitive compensation

structures.

Objectives
The primary goal of the study is to establish a clear job classification system, enhancing

organizational efficiency, equity, employee engagement, and satisfaction. Secondly, the study

aims to establish a fair, equitable, and sustainable compensation structure for non-represented

staff, primarily leaders. This entails analyzing market trends and industry standards to

determine competitive salary ranges for each job classification.

Methodology
The study involved data collection, job analysis, benchmarking, and a labor market analysis.

Data was collected from comparator agencies to ensure accuracy in comparing classifications.

Benchmarking was conducted for both benchmark and non-benchmark jobs, with a systematic 
approach for non-benchmark positions. The study also considered geographic context, 
adjusting data to reflect differences in the cost of labor between jurisdictions.

Data Analysis
The study analyzed median salary comparisons by classification, indicating that Homes for 
Good lags in terms of cash compensation for several non-represented classifications. Notably, 
the study highlighted pay compression issues resulting from two Collective Bargaining 

Agreements and the growing complexity of programs offered.

1



Recommendation Summary
The study recommends a new internal placement and releveling system, introducing different

grade levels for non-represented classifications based on their responsibilities and

competencies. It also advises a shift in language in job descriptions from rigid qualifications

to more equitable language, aiming to attract a more diverse pool of applicants.

The existing salary step and grade structure should be retained, but cash compensation

should be adjusted to bring salary mid-points closer to market rates while maintaining

comparison ratios within the 80% - 120% range. The proposed Schedule B, effective

following adoption, offers a balanced approach to compensation management, considering

market realities, financial constraints, and organizational goals.

In summary, this study provides a strategic blueprint for Homes for Good to ensure

competitive compensation practices, promote employee satisfaction, and attract and retain

top talent in a rapidly evolving market, all while aligning with the agency's mission and

values.

2



COMPENSATION STRATEGY OVERVIEWCOMPENSATION STRATEGY OVERVIEW
In the current context, attracting and retaining top talent is crucial for the success of the

Agency’s operations. Homes for Good’s objective is to align compensation practices with

market pay standards, while taking financial constraints into consideration, to meet market pay

standards and lead in terms of non-cash compensation (time off and fringe benefits). To

achieve this, we recommend adopting a multifaceted approach that encompasses various

elements of compensation, employee engagement and pay equity best practices.

Continual market analysis is the foundational step, including regular salary surveys and

benchmarking to gauge current pay rates among talent competitors. It’s crucial that we

understand our position within the competitive landscape. With that in mind, we’ve established

clear compensation goals, taking into account our mission, values and financial parameters. 

We intend to create a holistic total rewards package that appeals to top talent by striking a

balance between cash compensation, fringe benefits, paid time off and flexible work

arrangements. 

Additionally, our commitment to transparency, equity and compliance with regulations

underpin our strategy. We recognize that talent development is key, and investment in our

leaders, and their training and advancement opportunities will be central to nurturing and

retaining our workforce. This strategy prioritizes continuous review and adaptation to remain

responsive to evolving market dynamics, a rising cost of living and employee needs. By

implementing these measures, Homes for Good seeks to not only meet the market in terms of

pay but also create an environment where top talent can thrive while making a meaningful

contribution to our workplace and the greater Lane County community. 

BACKGROUND OF NON-REPRESENTEDBACKGROUND OF NON-REPRESENTED
COMPENSATION FRAMEWORKCOMPENSATION FRAMEWORK
Homes for Good last completed a non-union salary study in 2017. As a result, the current

compensation system was implemented to include: 

7 step system

5% between each step, representing annual merit increases until the final step is reached

6% between each grade

Approximately 34% range (difference between the first and final step in a grade)

Prior to this salary study, the Agency’s compensation plan included established salary ranges

with defined minimums and maximums but did not include any form of placement

methodology or any means for providing structured growth within a standardized framework. 

3



RATIONALE OF THE STUDYRATIONALE OF THE STUDY
Homes for Good has grown significantly since the most recent classification & compensation

study, most notably in terms of programs & services offered, financial growth, staffing levels

and other strategic factors. There has also been considerable movement in the economic

climate since the 2017 study.

FINANCIAL
GROWTH

Growth in revenue &
expenses

Budget increased
approximately 49%
since last study

ECONOMIC
CLIMATE

Rising cost of living

Wage compression

Increased demand
for talent

STAFFING 
LEVELS

40% growth in FTE

Larger increase of
represented FTE

Increase in supervisor
to employee ratio

STRATEGIC
FACTORS

Uncertainty during
COVID-19

Strategic Equity Plan

More sophisticated
leaders

Retention concerns

PROGRAMS &
SERVICES

New Rent Assistance
programs

Resident Services
expansion

PSH Case
Management

Programs & Services
Since 2017, Homes for Good has expanded our programs and services substantially. Most

notably, we added several new Rental Assistance programs, expanded Resident Services to

third party managed communities, and added Permanent Supportive Housing (PSH)

behavioral services. 

Financial Growth
Considerable growth in revenue and expenses underscores the importance of aligning

compensation with our financial capabilities. Since the last compensation study and

subsequent implementation of the current program, Homes for Good has experienced

considerable growth in terms of our financial position. The Agency’s audited financial reports

show 88% growth in financial position between 2017 and 2022. With this extensive growth,

we must ensure that our compensation structure remains sustainable and competitive within

our industry. 

Economic Climate
In light of significant shifts in the economic landscape since 2017, it’s imperative for Homes

for Good to conduct a comprehensive classification & compensation study to adapt to the

evolving conditions. One of the most compelling reasons for such a study is the substantial 



Au
g-
20

Oct
-2
0

Dec
-2
0

Fe
b-
21

Ap
r-2
1

Ju
n-
21

Au
g-
21

Oct
-2
1

Dec
-2
1

Fe
b-
22

Ap
r-2
2

Ju
n-
22

Au
g-
22

Oct
-2
2

Dec
-2
2

Fe
b-
23

Ap
r-2
3

Ju
n-
23

Au
g-
23

10 

7.5 

5 

2.5 

0 

increase in the cost of living, which has been prominently reflected in the Consumer Price

Index (CPI). This index, which encompasses the prices of essential goods and services, has

consistently shown considerable increases in the cost of living, placing a heavier burden on

employees’ purchasing power and overall quality of life.

CPI-U Western Region 12 Month
Change %

Additionally, the post-pandemic era has witnessed heightening competition for top talent

across industries, prompting the need for organizations to reassess their compensation

strategies to attract and retain skilled professionals.

This competitive environment has led to wage compression, where earnings differences

between represented staff and leadership diminish, potentially causing internal equity issues

and leading to increased turnover of key management positions. In this challenging

economic climate, a comprehensive compensation study is not just a strategic priority, but

an ethical one, ensuring fair and equitable compensation that aligns with the reality of the

times while preserving the ability to attract and retain top talent.

Figure 1 shows the monthly year-over-year percentage change in the CPI-U (Western Region) tracks and reports the rate of 
inflation of change in the price level of a basket of goods and services in a 12-month period.

Source U.S. Bureau of  & Statistics 
https://www.bls.gov/regions/west/news-release/
consumerpriceindex_west.htm

5

https://www.bls.gov/regions/west/news-release/consumerpriceindex_west.htm


Staffing Levels
Since the previous study, Homes for Good has experienced sizable growth in terms of full

time equivalent (FTE) staff, moving from 87.5 FTE to 126 FTE, representing a 44% increase.

Additionally, the shift in ratio of represented staff to leaders from 2017-2023 highlights the

changing dynamics within our workplace. At the time of the most recent study, the ratio of

supervisors to employees was 1:3. The current reflects one supervisor to every 3.5

employees (1:3.5). Although it may seem like a marginal increase, the ratio is skewed in that

some leaders supervise smaller teams than others, with the ratio if 1:13 being the highest.

This study takes the ratio of employees to supervisors into consideration in an effort to

ensure that Homes for Good’s management structure and compensation framework remain

effective and aligned with growth trajectory. 

Represented Non-Represented

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

125 

100 

75 

50 

25 

0 

Figure 2 shows 
growth in FTE, both 
represented and 
non-represented 
from 2018 - current

6



Strategic Factors
Several strategic factors reinforce the need for this study. First, the Agency has navigated the

uncertainties of the pandemic and has undertaken new programs in response to the

Community’s need during and since the onset of COVID-19. This has greatly impacted the

jobs and responsibilities of our leaders, necessitating a review of classification and

compensation to reflect these changes accurately. Second, in order to achieve the goals

outlined in our Strategic Equity Plan (SEP), we require a higher level of sophistication from our

leaders and this shift should be reflected in compensation practices.

Lastly, recent concerns raised by the board about recruitment, retention and compensation

during executive reviews and leadership recruitment processes indicate a need to assess the

competitiveness of our compensation packages. 

OBJECTIVES OF THE STUDYOBJECTIVES OF THE STUDY
Aside from being a best practice, periodic classification & compensation studies serve several

important objectives aimed at enhancing organizational efficiency, equity, employee

engagement, satisfaction and retention. 

The primary goal of the study is to establish a clear and well defined job classification system,

which involves categorizing various positions based on their roles, responsibilities, span of

control and skill requirements. Taking these steps will ensure that every classification is

accurately and consistently defined, which will better support efficient workforce planning,

recruitment, professional development programs and resource allocation. 

Secondly, the study seeks to establish a fair, equitable and sustainable compensation structure

for our non-represented employees, which is primarily made up of leaders at different levels of

the organization. This requires analyzing market trends and industry standards to determine

competitive salary ranges for each job classification. Ensuring that employees are

compensated fairly not only promotes job satisfaction but also helps attract and retain a highly

skilled workforce. Additionally, a well-structured compensation system can help manage

budgetary constraints while aligning with the Agency’s strategic goals.

7



METHODOLOGYMETHODOLOGY
The scope of the study involved comparing total compensation for each non-union

classification at similarly situated public agencies throughout Oregon. Data was collected from

eight comparator agencies, with two additional comparators for the Energy Services Director

classification, which is not traditionally a classification of a public housing authority, and as a

result, is difficult to compare. 

The public Agencies listed to the right were identified as relevant comparators. However, it

should be noted that public housing authorities vary widely across the state in terms of

programs offered, legal structures and jurisdictions. Because of this nuance, comparators

were selected from public agencies that have been identified as competitors in terms of

talent. 

Home Forward - Portland, OR

City of Salem Housing Authority - Salem, OR Clackamas 

County Housing Authority, Oregon City, OR Washington 

County Housing Authority - Hillsboro, OR Housing 

Authority of Jackson County - Medford, OR Lane County 

Government - Eugene, OR

City of Eugene - Eugene, OR

City of Springfield - Springfield, OR

Community Services Consortium - Corvallis, OR (ESD) 

United Community Action Network  - Roseburg, OR (ESD)

The study also explored average

compensation by classification

through the Milliman Oregon

Public Employer Survey, which

provides comprehensive and local

objective pay data on 198

positions in the Public Sector

throughout Oregon. Milliman is

one of the world’s largest

independent actuarial and

consulting firms. 

In addition to cash compensation,

data on core benefits such as

paid time off, health insurance

and retirement benefits was

collected and compared. 

Data Collection
Homes for Good identified  the following 23 non-represented classifications to review.

ADA & HR Coordinator 
Communications Specialist
Executive Support 
Maintenance Services Supervisor 
Property Management Supervisor 
Human Resources Generalist
Rent Assistance Supervisor
Permanent Supportive Housing 
Supervisor

Asset Manager
CAP Manager
Resident Services 
Manager Portfolio 
Manager
Finance Manager
Project Development 
Manager Energy Services 
Director Finance Director

Human Resources Director
IT Director
Real Estate Development 
Director Rent Assistance 
Director Supportive Housing 
Director Communications 
Director Executive Director

8



Compensation schedules and corresponding job descriptions from comparator agencies were

collected. Job descriptions and organizational structures were reviewed to match only jobs

that reflected at least 80% of duties and transferrable skills & competencies to ensure

accuracy of comparison. When data collected was not clear, the comparator agency was

contacted directly to clarify and validate missing or questionable information. 

 Market Analysis
An analysis of the competitive landscape for talent was conducted as a key component of the

study.  Market analysis aims to: 

Identify areas within which employers are competing for talent

Conduct (and participate in) market surveys within the  market

to determine salary level for specific positions

Work with leaders to validate market areas, market

competitors and job matches (benchmarks)

Identify market trends such as ancillary pay, merit increases

and other pay practices

Establish, adjust and/or recommend salary structures that will

allow an organization to compete for staff within specific

classification levels or grades

The results of a labor market analysis, recruitment and retention indicators, availability of

funds and internal equity/alignment issues are all considerations when establishing or

adjusting salary ranges. These factors are of equal importance when considering making

individual pay adjustments. 

In terms of mathematics, salary data is represented using compa ratios. 

Compa ratios, short for “comparison ratios,” are a critical component of any comprehensive

compensation study. These ratios provide a snapshot of how an organization’s pay practices

compare to a predetermined market or industry benchmark. Compa ratios offer valuable

insights into the competitiveness of an organization’s compensation structure and can be

used to guide decision makers in ensuring fair and competitive pay practices. 

Compa ratios are calculated as follows:

9



A compensation framework that offers compa ratios between 80% and 120% of the market

median is generally considered best practice, where 80% represents compensation alignment

for less experienced employees who may be new to the particular role, 100% represents

alignment for mid-career employees, and 120% represents alignment for very experienced

employees of for employees with a highly specialized and in-demand skill.

80% 120%100%

Falling within this range represeents a balanced approach to compensation management

while acknowledging market realities and considering the organization’s financial constraints

and objectives.

Ratios below 80% suggest that an organization is undercompensating employees, where

ratios above 120% indicate overcompensation, potentially leading to increased  costs without

corresponding benefits. 

Leading the
Market

A compa ratio greater than 100% indicates a range that is higher than market comparison.
This suggests that pay is more generous than similarly situated employers, potentially
leading to increased retention and attraction of top talent. However, consistently high compa
ratios across an organization can indicate overcompensation.

A compa ratio of exactly 100% indicates that pay matches market
comparators precisely. This suggests that compensation practices are aligned
with industry standards. 

A compa ratio below 100% indicates lagging compensation compared to
organizations competing for talent. This could be a sign of potential recruitment
and retention challenges. 

Meeting the
Market

Lagging the
Market

While maintaining compa ratios between 80% and 120% is widely accepted as a general

guideline, organizations can strategically choose where they want to position their practices

within this range. This decision should align with the organization’s overall compensation

strategy, business goals and industry norms. 

10



It’s important to distinguish between average (mean) income and median income. Average

income, or the mean, is calculated by adding up all the numbers in a data set and dividing this

sum by the total count of number in the data set. 

On the other hand, median income is the middle value within a data set. To find the median,

all of the numbers in a data set are arranged in ascending order and the center number is

identified. When comparing cash compensation to comparator roles, the median salary is used

as opposed to the mean (average). It’s widely considered a best practice when comparing

cash compensation to use median income data, not the mean, because outliers can skew the

average. An outlier is a value that lies outside most of the other values in a data set and is

significantly smaller or larger than in value.

Benchmarking
Benchmarking is a systematic process used to evaluate and compare

specific job roles within an organization or industry. It involves

analyzing the key responsibilities, skills, competencies, qualifications

and performance expectations associated with a particular job, then

comparing these factors to similar positions in the market or within

an organization. Benchmarking jobs can assist employers in gaining

valuable insights into how their roles stack up against industry

standards and competitors, enabling them to make informed

decisions regarding compensation, recruitment, and talent 

management strategies. The practice helps ensure that job roles are accurately aligned with

market trends, leading to more effective workforce planning and improved overall organization

performance.

Benchmarking positions at Homes for Good poses several unique challenges owing to the

specificity of roles and the vast geographic area Oregon encompasses. Public Housing

Authorities can have a variety of organizational and legal structures. For example, Homes for

Good, Home Forward and the Housing Authority of Jackson County are public corporations that

are separate from other governments. However, Housing Authorities of Clackamas and

Washington Counties are departments within their County Governments, where the Salem

Housing Authority sits with the City of Salem Municipality. 

Public Housing Authorities also often have specialized functions, making it difficult to compare

job functions of similarly situated Agencies. 

The cost of living and  market conditions can fluctuate greatly within Oregon, making it

challenging to determine competitive compensation structures that account for such

disparities. 

11



For the purposes of this study, non-represented classifications were compared to those at other

Public Housing Authorities, but also to those at other public agencies that have been identified

as competitors in terms of talent. Comparable jobs tell into two categories. 

Benchmark Job vs Non-Benchmark Job
A benchmark job is one that has a standard and consistent set of responsibilities from one

organization to another and for which data is available in valid & reliable surveys. 

A non-benchmark job is one for which exact valid and reliable survey data is not available. They

may be jobs that are unique to an organization, or they could be jobs that can’t be matched to

comparable positions in published surveys. 

Matching benchmark jobs requires less analysis than non-benchmark jobs. To classify a

benchmark job, data is compiled from surveys to determine the median wage rate for the job.

The job is then placed into the appropriate grade with a mid-point that is closest to the median

salary in reported surveys.

When matching a non-benchmark job, a methodical approach that includes the following steps

is followed: 

Determine the position’s job family. A job family is a group of jobs in which the work

performed is of s a similar nature and have similar or related core knowledge and

background requirements. A job family framework is a structure that groups jobs by the

nature of work rather than by job title or organizational hierarchy. They are often used

for comparing skills and responsibilities of similar jobs for the purpose of determining

salary ranges for non-benchmark jobs.

Compare non-benchmark jobs to benchmark jobs within the same job family based on

factors important to it (i.e. skills & competency requirements, management

responsibilities, span of control, difficulty of job, decision making responsibilities,

experience & educational requirements).

Place the job into the appropriate salary grade and position within the range relative to

comparator positions within the same job family. 

Job family frameworks are generally maintained by large workplaces with several roles within

each functional area of the organization. A large County or City government ma have several

job families within one organizational function, and several individual roles within each job

family. For example, the Information Technology function may have several job families within

it, such as IT User Support, Privacy & Security, Database Administration, Network

Administration, User Experience etc., and multiple position within each family. 

12



Function

Family Family Family Family

Job Job Job Job Job Job Job Job

Due to the comparatively small number of non-represented classifications, Homes for Good does

not maintain a job family framework for it’s leaders. Using the IT example referenced above,

Homes for Good only has one non-represented IT classification. However, understanding

comparator agencies’ job family frameworks can offer insight into the appropriate compensation

for a non-benchmark position. For example, due to Homes for Good’s relatively small size,

director classifications of Shared Services Divisions (IT, HR & Finance), often are best aligned

with the second most responsible classification within a large County or City government’s job

family framework.

The tables in Appendix D represent how Homes for Good classifications were compared across

comparator agencies. 

Geographic Context
Collected survey data was adjusted geographically to reflect “cost of ” as calculated by the

Economic Research Institute. “Cost of ” refers to the difference in pay or  markets for a job

from one location to another. The cost of  is what a particular geographic market offers as the 

“going rate” or compensation for its job

and reflect the local demand and supply of

labor. 

For example, Clackamas County has a

higher cost of labor than Lane County.

Therefore, data reported by Clackamas

County was adjusted down by 7% to

normalize the rates of pay in the

Clackamas area to equate to the cost of

labor in Lane County. 

Table 1 represents the cost of labor for each 
comparator Agency based on geographic 
location. Source: Economic Research Institute 
(ERI)

13



Job Classification Analysis

An in-depth review of job descriptions was conducted for each non-represented classification.

The objective of the review was to ensure accuracy of the position’s essential functions,

confirm reliable data sufficient to benchmark the position, create a leveling framework to place

classifications into the appropriate compensation grade, and to ensure experience and

educational requirements are appropriate for the role and to eliminate language that may post

unnecessary barriers to employment that are not relevant to the position. 

In addition to evaluating external market data, job descriptions and job requirements were

evaluated for each classification reviewed. Various position related factors were considered in

recommending internal placement including minimum education & experience requirements,

program oversight, level of autonomy, span of control, and current pay structures.

Table 2 above represents the current job titles, education and experience requirements and internal placement

indicated by “grades.” Grade letters are used to depict how a position might be placed on a salary schedule in

relation to others. 

ANALYSISANALYSIS

14



Median Salary Comparison by Classification

A comparison of Homes for Good’s current salary grades was conducted by comparing range medians (or mid-points) to the medians of

grades for comparable classifications. The table below shows compa ratios for each non-represented classification at Homes for Good as

compared to classifications at comparator agencies (adjusted for the cost of labor), with the exception of the Energy Services Director

classification, which used different comparators and is demonstrated in Appendix F.

The data presented above shows that Homes for Good currently lags the market in terms of cash compensation for many non-represented

positions. most notably in grades F - K. 

Table 3 shows Homes for Good’s non-represented compensation compa ratios for each comparator agency.

Classification Group
Hourly Rate 

Median

% Compa 

Ratio - Lane 

County Govt

% Compa 

Ratio - City 

of Eugene

% Compa 

Ratio - City 

of 

Springfield

% Compa 

Ratio - 

Millman

% Compa 

Ratio - Home 

Forward

% Compa 

Ratio - 

Clackamas

% Compa 

Ratio - City 

of Salem

% Compa 

Ratio - WA 

County

% Compa 

Ratio - JCHA

% Compa 

Ratio - 

Median

ADA & HR Coordinator A 26.57$  92% 88% 89% 86% 84% 73% 91% 91% #DIV/0! 89%
Maintenance Services Supervisor B 32.92$  81% 85% 80% 76% 81% 74% 90% 61% 72% 80%
Property Manager B 32.92$  81% 72% 80% 86% 88% 71% 90% 61% #DIV/0! 81%
Rent Assistance Supervisor B 32.92$  81% 72% 80% 86% 81% 74% 90% 61% #DIV/0! 80%
Communications Specialist C 33.83$  83% 74% 96% 78% 88% 72% 79% 68% #DIV/0! 79%
Executive Support C 33.83$  107% 103% 96% 86% 107% 101% 98% 85% 108% 101%
PSH Supervisor D 34.56$  77% #DIV/0! 84% 90% 85% 74% 95% 64% #DIV/0! 84%

HR Generalist E 34.89$  86% 98% 99% 91% 93% 104% 98% 90% 101% 98%

Asset Manager F 36.98$  78% 74% 82% 79% 76% 75% 83% 78% 107% 78%

CAP Manager F 36.98$  82% 80% 82% 79% 83% 75% 83% 74% #DIV/0! 81%
Finance Manager F 36.98$  81% 74% 73% 68% 83% 71% 79% 71% #DIV/0! 73%
Portfolio Manager F 36.98$  81% 74% 73% 79% 76% 83% 83% 65% #DIV/0! 78%
Project Development Manager F 36.98$  81% 74% 73% 68% 76% 75% 79% 65% #DIV/0! 74%
Resident Services Manager F 36.98$  81% 74% 73% 79% 76% 91% 83% 65% #DIV/0! 78%
Finance Director H 44.04$  77% 67% 73% 75% 62% 77% 75% 69% 71% 73%
HR Director H 44.04$  85% 67% 73% 78% 62% 77% 75% 74% #DIV/0! 75%
IT Director H 44.04$  79% 67% 73% 72% 77% 70% 75% 71% #DIV/0! 73%
Communications Director I 46.68$  68% 71% 77% 71% 66% 68% 80% 72% #DIV/0! 71%
Real Estate Development Director I 46.68$  82% 67% 77% 70% 66% 78% 80% 73% 75% 75%
Rent Assistance Director J 52.46$  92% 76% 87% 79% 74% 83% 89% 77% 113% 83%
Supportive Housing Director J 52.46$  92% 76% 87% 79% 74% 83% 89% 77% 85% 83%
Executive Director K 72.32$  77% 69% 101% 90% 79% 89% 101% 78% 87% 87%

14

15



A number of classifications are outliers, specifically Executive Support, Communications

Specialist, ADA & HR Coordinator and Human Resources Generalist roles.The reason for this

inconsistency is due to these classifications being significantly newer than others, meaning a

compensation review was conducted when the positions were added or reclassified. 

This inconsistency is due to these classifications being significantly newer than others,

meaning a compensation review was conducted when the positions were added or

reclassified. The Rent Assistance Division Director and Supportive Housing Division Director

classifications were reclassified in 2019. In contrast, other classifications have not been

reviewed since the 2017 study. 

Figure 3 above shows how Homes for Good’s median non-represented compensation compares to 
market medians for comparable roles at comparator agencies. 

For additional context, as referenced in a previous section, since the 2017 salary study,

Homes for Good has grown significantly in performance and complexity of programs offered.

With this growth, FTE has grown by approximately 44%, increasing the responsibility and

span of control of Agency leaders, requiring higher levels of skill and competency in terms of

talent. 

The Agency has also ratified two Collective Bargaining Agreements since the most recent

study, resulting in significant pay compression between several represented and non-

represented classifications. Pay compression, also referred to as salary or wage compression,

occurs when there is little differences in pay between employees, regardless of differences in

job responsibilities, span of control and required competency. If not addressed, pay

compression can lead to turnover, causing key talent to leave for higher paying opportunities. 

16



Benefits & Non-Cash Compensation Analysis

When analyzing classification & compensation information,

it’s important to assess not only cash compensation

packages offered, but also the non-cash components such

as paid time off, retirement and health benefits. These

elements play a crucial role in attracting and retaining

talent, as they reflect an organization’s commitment to the

wellbeing and job satisfaction of its employees. Unlike cash

compensation, which primarily addresses immediate

financial needs, these non-cash components contribute

significantly to an employee’s overall quality of life and long

term financial security. 

Homes for Good’s non-cash compensation, health benefits, paid time off and retirement

benefits, meet or lead the market. In  terms of health benefits, the Agency’s plans are

equivalent to similarly situated public employers. However, while most public agencies offer

excellent health benefits for reasonable premiums, Homes for Good funds the entire

employee health insurance premium for a family, which is impactful to total compensation as

only two other comparable employers offer this level of benefit.

Homes for Good’s retirement plan is comparable to most comparators. While other

comparator agencies participate in the Public Employees Retirement System (PERS), Homes

for Good’s retirement plan is a 401(k) structure, where a total of 12% contribution is funded

by the Agency after six months of employment, which is equivalent to the PERS benefit of

comparator agencies. 

Homes for Good’s paid time off benefits stand out as above average, with only one other

comparator employer offering a more generous benefit with .5 more paid days.

RECOMMENDATIONSRECOMMENDATIONS
Overall, the study found that Homes for Good’s non-cash benefit program is comparable to

the market. However, base salary is lagging for most non-represented classifications.

Therefore, it is recommended that Homes for Good adopt modifications to base pay, including

internal placement and leveling, and implementation of updates to the current salary

schedule. 

Internal Placement & Leveling

After review of job descriptions, both internally and externally, implementing the following

internal placement structure is recommended.

Grade A
Non-supervisory classifications, technical & administrative duties. 

17



Grade B
First level supervisory classifications & non-supervisory classifications that perform difficult and

varied analytical work whose areas of responsibility and associated recommendations have a

substantial impact on Agency operations. 

Grade C
Second level supervisory classifications and non-supervisory classifications that perform

difficult and varied analytical work . Classifications differ from those in Group B whose span of

supervision is substantially smaller. 

Fourth level supervisory classifications. This grade differs from classifications in Grade C in

that it includes classifications that are responsible for the management of an entire complex

program and/or that supervise other supervisory classifications within lower grades.

Grade E

Fifth supervisory classifications. Classifications within differ from those in lower grades in that

areas of expertise in this grade are specific and nuanced, and require more robust experience

and potentially a professional certification. 

Grade F

First Director level classifications. Classifications within are distinguished from lower grades in

that they manage an entire division. This grade differs from subsequent grades in that the

span of control and difficulty of work are significantly less than those in Grade G.

Grade G

Second level Director classifications. Programmatic and shared services directors with large,

complex programs and/or a wide span of control differentiates classifications in this grade

from classifications in previous grades.

Grade H

Third level Director classification. This grade is distinguished from classifications in Grade F by

a higher level of responsibility and autonomy, as this classification supervises second level

Directors and serves as “second in command,” or Deputy Executive. 

Grade I

Grade D
Third level supervisory classification. This grade differs from Grade B in that classifications

within are responsible for the management of larger, more complex program and have

significantly more responsibility for policy development, planning and program evaluation.

Executive Director classification. This grade is distinguished form all previous grades by

responsibility, difficulty of work and complete span of control. Reports to the Board of

Commissioners and is ultimately responsible for the performance of the Agency.  

Grade J

18



The table above represents the recommended internal placement based on minimum

education & experience requirements, program oversight, level of autonomy, span of control,

and current pay structures. 

Based on current job functions, the recommendation also includes reclassifying and retitling

the ADA & HR Coordinator position to Accommodations Coordinator, removing confidential

duties and transitioning the role to the represented compensation schedule. Lastly, it’s

recommended that Homes for Good add two classifications to the non-represented schedule;

Payroll & Human Resources Specialist and Deputy Director.

See Appendix E for the matrix used to determine placement recommended in Table 4. 

Table 4 above shows recommended internal placement

Reccomended Position Title
Reccomended Education & 

Experience Requirements

Reccomended 

Internal 

Placement 

Grades

Executive Director Bach + 7 years J

Deputy Director Bach + 7 years I

Communications Director Bach + 5 years H

Rent Assistance Director Bach + 5 years H

Supportive Housing Director Bach + 5 years H

Real Estate Division Director Bach + 5 years H

Finance Director Bach + 5 years H

Human Resources Director Bach + 5 years H

IT Director Bach + 5 years H

Energy Services Director Bach + 4 years G

Project Development Manager Bach + 4 years F

Finance Manager Bach + 4 years F

Asset Manager Bach + 4 years E

CAP Manager Bach + 4 years E

Portfolio Manager Bach + 4 years E

Resident Services Manager Bach + 4 years E

Rent Assistance Supervisor Bach + 3 years D

Communications Specialist Bach + 3 years D

Human Resources Generalist Bach + 3 years C

Permanent Supportive Housing Manager Bach + 3 years C

Executive Support Coordinator Assoc + 3 years B

Property Manager Assoc + 3 years B

Maintenance Services Supervisor HS + 7 years B

Payroll & HR Specialist Assoc + 3 years A

19



After a thorough review of Homes for Good’s non-represented job descriptions, it’s

recommended that the Agency adjust the language in the “education & experience” section of

the job descriptions, moving away from firm requirements to more equitable language, as

studies consistently show that people who hold marginalized identities are less likely to apply

for jobs unless they meet every one of the listed qualifications. The proposal adds the

following language to job descriptions following adoption:

“Minimum qualifications are used as a guide for establishing the experience,

education, licensure and/or certifications for someone to be successful in the

position. Any combination of experience and training that would likely

provide the required knowledge and abilities is qualifying. A typical way to

obtain the knowledge and abilities would be:”

Cash Compensation - Schedule B

Homes for Good’s current non-represented salary schedule includes established salary ranges

within a step and grade system. The structure includes 12 letter grades, standardized at 6%

between each grade with some variation, and seven steps standardized at 5% between each

step. The step and grade system provides Homes for Good with a structure to allow specific,

measured growth at 5% per step for each employee within their assigned grade. Each

employee is eligible for a step merit increase annually. 

It’s recommended that Homes for Good retain the current salary step and grade structure, but

adjust cash-compensation to bring salary mid-points closer to market, maintaining compa

ratios within 80% - 120%.

See the next page for the recommended Schedule B, which is being proposed to take effect at

the beginning of the pay period following adoption. 

Revised job descriptions are included in Appendix G.

20



Table 5 above shows the recommended Non-represented compensation Schedule B

% Increase 

by 

Classification

GRADE POSITION STEP 1 STEP 2 STEP 3 STEP 4 STEP 5 STEP 6 STEP 7

A HR & Payroll Coordinator Hourly 25.00$    26.25$    27.56$    28.94$    30.39$    31.91$    33.51$    
Bi-weekly 2,000.00$     2,100.00$     2,204.80$     2,315.20$     2,431.20$     2,552.80$     2,680.80$     
Annually 52,000.00$    54,600.00$    57,324.80$    60,195.20$    63,211.20$    66,372.80$    69,700.80$    

B Executive Support Hourly 31.00$    32.55$    34.18$    35.89$    37.68$    39.56$    41.54$    6.1%
Maintenance Services Supervisor Bi-weekly 2,480.00$     2,604.00$     2,734.40$     2,871.20$     3,014.40$     3,164.80$     3,323.20$     9.0%
Property Manager Annually 64,480.00$    67,704.00$    71,094.40$    74,651.20$    78,374.40$    82,284.80$    86,403.20$    9.0%

C Rent Assistance Supervisor Hourly 32.50$    34.13$    35.84$    37.63$    39.51$    41.49$    43.56$    9%
PSH Supervisor Bi-weekly 2,600.00$     2,730.40$     2,867.20$     3,010.40$     3,160.80$     3,319.20$     3,484.80$     9%
Human Resources Generalist Annually 67,600.00$    70,990.40$    74,547.20$    78,270.40$    82,180.80$    86,299.20$    90,604.80$    8%
Communications Specialist 11%

D Asset Manager Hourly 37.50$    39.38$    41.35$    43.42$    45.59$    47.87$    50.26$    17%
CAP Manager Bi-weekly 3,000.00$     3,150.40$     3,308.00$     3,473.60$     3,647.20$     3,829.60$     4,020.80$     17%
Resident Services Manager Annually 78,000.00$    81,910.40$    86,008.00$    90,313.60$    94,827.20$    99,569.60$    104,540.80$     17%
Portfolio Manager 17%

E Finance Manager Hourly 40.10$    42.11$    44.22$    46.43$    48.75$    51.19$    53.75$    26%
Project Development Manager Bi-weekly 3,208.00$     3,368.80$     3,537.60$     3,714.40$     3,900.00$     4,095.20$     4,300.00$     17%

Annually 83,408.00$    87,588.80$    91,977.60$    96,574.40$    101,400.00$     106,475.20$     111,800.00$     

F Energy Services Director Hourly 44.93$    47.18$    49.54$    52.02$    54.62$    57.35$    60.22$    28%
Bi-weekly 3,594.40$     3,774.40$     3,963.20$     4,161.60$     4,369.60$     4,588.00$     4,817.60$     
Annually 93,454.40$    98,134.40$    103,043.20$     108,201.60$     113,609.60$     119,288.00$     125,257.60$     

G Finance Director Hourly 50.45$    52.97$    55.62$    58.40$    61.32$    64.39$    67.61$    25%
Human Resources Director Bi-weekly 4,036.00$     4,237.60$     4,449.60$     4,672.00$     4,905.60$     5,151.20$     5,408.80$     33%
IT Director Annually 104,936.00$     110,177.60$     115,689.60$     121,472.00$     127,545.60$     133,931.20$     140,628.80$     33%
Real Estate Development Director 25%
Rent Assistance Director 11%
Supportive Housing Director 11%

H Deputy Director Hourly 55.08$    57.83$    60.72$    63.76$    66.95$    70.30$    73.82$    25%
Bi-weekly 4,406.40$     4,626.40$     4,857.60$     5,100.80$     5,356.00$     5,624.00$     5,905.60$     
Annually 114,566.40$     120,286.40$     126,297.60$     132,620.80$     139,256.00$     146,224.00$     153,545.60$     

I Executive Director Hourly 73.10$    76.76$    80.60$    84.63$    88.86$    93.30$    97.97$    17%
Bi-weekly 5,848.00$     6,140.80$     6,448.00$     6,770.40$     7,108.80$     7,464.00$     7,837.60$     
Annually 152,048.00$     159,660.80$     167,648.00$     176,030.40$     184,828.80$     194,064.00$     203,777.60$     

COMPENSATION PLAN - SCHEDULE B - NON-REPRESENTED

21



Merit Increases

It’s recommended that movement within the salary schedule from one step to the next be based

on merit and occur only when the incumbent receives an acceptable performance evaluations.

Performance evaluations are completed on a semi-annual basis at Homes for Good, at which

time the evaluator will recommend whether the employee will receive a merit increase. Once the

incumbent has progressed through Step 7 of their classification’s assigned salary grade, no

additional merit adjustments will be available. However, these employees will be eligible for a

longevity increase, as outlined below, and for non-merit based Cost of Living Adjustments

(COLAs). 

Longevity Incentive Pay

The following longevity incentive pay premiums are recommended for long term leaders who

have progressed through all available steps within their salary grade: 

If an employee has been at the top step of their salary grade for three years, they are eligible

for a 2% wage increase upon completion 15 years of service with the Agency, and an additional

2% increase upon completion of 20 years of service. 

Offering a longevity salary increase for long-term employees can provide numerous advantages

for both the employees and the organization. This practice not only acknowledges and rewards

loyalty and dedication but also incentivizes retention of experienced staff. Long-serving

employees bring a wealth of institutional knowledge, expertise, and a strong understanding of

the workplace culture, which can be invaluable for mentoring newer team members and driving

innovation. Additionally, this strategy promotes employee morale, job satisfaction, and

commitment, fostering a stable and harmonious work environment. In the long run, investing in

the well-being and financial security of loyal employees through longevity salary increases can

lead to enhanced productivity, reduced turnover, and a stronger, more resilient workforce.

Cost of Living Adjustments (COLAs)

To remain competitive in terms of talent and to account for inflation, it’s recommended Homes

for Good budget for and implement non-merit based cost of living adjustments (COLAs) to the

salary schedule annually. The recommended COLA is a percentage equal to the annual change

in the U.S. CPI-U Western Region, June to June.  This recommendation will require Homes for

Good to use annual the CPI-U Western Region during the budgeting process, forecasting the

COLA for the subsequent fiscal year, and submitting for board approval annually. 

The CPI-U for the Western Region is a specific regional variation of the Consumer Price Index

(CPI), a widely used economic indicator. The CPI measures changes in the cost of a basket of

goods and services over time, representing the average expenditures of urban households. The

CPI-U Western Region focuses on tracking these changes in the Western part of the United

States, providing valuable information about inflation and cost of living trends.

22



Employee Placement

In terms of methodology for placing individual employees within their classification’s

assigned grade on the updated salary schedule, it’s recommended that each employee

be placed on the step that most closely matches their current rate of pay but does not

result in a pay decrease. 

Maintenance & Periodic Review

A thorough review of compensation practices every three to five years, depending on

market movement, is considered best practice. Such regular reviews not only ensure

compensation remains competitive, but will also enable the Agency to adapt to shifting

context and market demands. It’s recommended that Homes for Good conduct

another study in three to five years to ensure non-represented compensation remains

competitive and to ensure our compensation strategy aligns with our strategic goals in

the ever-evolving job landscape. 

This recommendation limits the annual COLA to a maximum of 5%, meaning that for

years when the CPI-U Western Region is higher than 5, COLAs will be limited to 5% in

order to control growing labor expenses.

23



Table 6 shows Homes for Good’s non-represented compensation compa ratios for each comparator agency upon implementation of the recommended
adjustments

Classification Group Hourly Rate

% Compa 

Ratio - Lane 

County Govt

% Compa 

Ratio - City 

of Eugene

% Compa 

Ratio - City 

of 

Springfield

% Compa 

Ratio - 

Millman

% Compa 

Ratio - Home 

Forward

% Compa 

Ratio - 

Clackamas

% Compa 

Ratio - City 

of Salem

% Compa 

Ratio - WA 

County

% Compa 

Ratio - JCHA

% Compa 

Ratio - 

Average

Payroll & HR Specialist A 30.10$  96% 77% 79% 95% 94% 99% 92% 94% 123% 93%
Maintenance Services Supervisor B 35.89$  88% 93% 87% 83% 88% 81% 98% 67% 79% 84%
Property Manager B 35.89$  88% 78% 87% 94% 96% 77% 98% 67% #DIV/0! 84%
Executive Support B 35.89$  114% 109% 102% 91% 114% 107% 104% 90% 115% 104%
HR Generalist C 37.04$  91% 104% 105% 97% 99% 111% 104% 96% 107% 101%
PSH Supervisor C 37.04$  82% #DIV/0! 90% 97% 91% 80% 101% 69% #DIV/0! 86%
Communications Specialist D 39.36$  97% 86% 111% 90% 103% 84% 92% 79% #DIV/0! 92%

Rent Assistance Supervisor D 39.36$  97% 86% 96% 103% 97% 89% 108% 73% #DIV/0! 92%

Asset Manager E 42.83$  91% 86% 95% 92% 88% 87% 96% 90% 124% 93%

CAP Manager E 42.83$  95% 93% 95% 92% 96% 87% 96% 86% #DIV/0! 92%
Portfolio Manager E 42.83$  94% 86% 85% 92% 88% 96% 96% 76% #DIV/0! 88%
Resident Services Manager E 42.83$  94% 86% 85% 92% 88% 105% 96% 76% #DIV/0! 89%
Finance Manager F 46.43$  102% 93% 92% 86% 104% 90% 99% 89% #DIV/0! 94%
Project Development Manager F 46.43$  102% 93% 92% 86% 96% 94% 99% 82% #DIV/0! 92%
Finance Director H 58.40$  102% 89% 97% 99% 82% 102% 99% 91% 94% 95%
HR Director H 58.40$  113% 89% 97% 104% 82% 102% 99% 98% #DIV/0! 97%
IT Director H 58.40$  104% 89% 97% 95% 101% 93% 99% 94% #DIV/0! 96%
Real Estate Development Director H 58.40$  102% 84% 97% 88% 82% 97% 99% 91% 94% 92%
Rent Assistance Director H 58.40$  102% 84% 97% 88% 82% 93% 99% 86% 126% 94%
Supportive Housing Director H 58.40$  102% 84% 97% 88% 82% 93% 99% 86% 94% 91%
Communications Director 58.40$  85% 89% 97% 89% 82% 85% 99% 90% #DIV/0! 97%
Deputy Director I 70.09$  102% 107% 106% 107% 83% 91% 106% 86% #DIV/0! 106%
Executive Director J 84.63$  91% 80% 118% 105% 92% 105% 118% 91% 102% 99%

24

Classification Group Hourly Rate

% Compa 

Ratio - Lane 

County Govt

% Compa 

Ratio - City 

of Eugene

% Compa 

Ratio - City 

of 

Springfield

% Compa 

Ratio - 

Millman

% Compa 

Ratio - Home 

Forward

% Compa 

Ratio - 

Clackamas

% Compa 

Ratio - City 

of Salem

% Compa 

Ratio - WA 

County

% Compa 

Ratio - JCHA

% Compa 

Ratio - 

Average

Payroll & HR Specialist A 30.10$  96% 77% 79% 95% 94% 99% 92% 94% 123% 94%
Maintenance Services Supervisor B 35.89$  88% 93% 87% 83% 88% 81% 98% 67% 79% 87%
Property Manager B 35.89$  88% 78% 87% 94% 96% 77% 98% 67% #DIV/0! 88%
Executive Support B 35.89$  114% 109% 102% 91% 114% 107% 104% 90% 115% 107%
HR Generalist C 37.04$  91% 104% 105% 97% 99% 111% 104% 96% 107% 104%
PSH Supervisor C 37.04$  82% #DIV/0! 90% 97% 91% 80% 101% 69% #DIV/0! 90%
Communications Specialist D 39.36$  97% 86% 111% 90% 103% 84% 92% 79% #DIV/0! 91%

Rent Assistance Supervisor D 39.36$  97% 86% 96% 103% 97% 89% 108% 73% #DIV/0! 96%

Asset Manager E 42.83$  91% 86% 95% 92% 88% 87% 96% 90% 124% 91%

CAP Manager E 42.83$  95% 93% 95% 92% 96% 87% 96% 86% #DIV/0! 94%
Portfolio Manager E 42.83$  94% 86% 85% 92% 88% 96% 96% 76% #DIV/0! 90%
Resident Services Manager E 42.83$  94% 86% 85% 92% 88% 105% 96% 76% #DIV/0! 90%
Finance Manager F 46.43$  102% 93% 92% 86% 104% 90% 99% 89% #DIV/0! 92%
Project Development Manager F 46.43$  102% 93% 92% 86% 96% 94% 99% 82% #DIV/0! 93%
Finance Director H 58.40$  102% 89% 97% 99% 82% 102% 99% 91% 94% 97%
HR Director H 58.40$  113% 89% 97% 104% 82% 102% 99% 98% #DIV/0! 99%
IT Director H 58.40$  104% 89% 97% 95% 101% 93% 99% 94% #DIV/0! 96%
Real Estate Development Director H 58.40$  102% 84% 97% 88% 82% 97% 99% 91% 94% 94%
Rent Assistance Director H 58.40$  102% 84% 97% 88% 82% 93% 99% 86% 126% 93%
Supportive Housing Director H 58.40$  102% 84% 97% 88% 82% 93% 99% 86% 94% 93%
Communications Director H 58.40$  85% 89% 97% 89% 82% 85% 99% 90% #DIV/0! 89%
Deputy Director I 70.09$  102% 107% 106% 107% 83% 91% 106% 86% #DIV/0! 104%
Executive Director J 84.63$  91% 80% 118% 105% 92% 105% 118% 91% 102% 102%



APPENDIX A - RECOMMENDED SALARY SCHEDULE BAPPENDIX A - RECOMMENDED SALARY SCHEDULE B

GRADE POSITION STEP 1 STEP 2 STEP 3 STEP 4 STEP 5 STEP 6 STEP 7

A HR & Payroll Coordinator Hourly 26.00$  27.30$  28.67$  30.10$  31.61$  33.19$  34.85$  1.16

Bi-weekly 2,080.00$  2,184.00$  2,293.60$  2,408.00$  2,528.80$  2,655.20$  2,788.00$  

Annually 54,080.00$  56,784.00$  59,633.60$  62,608.00$  65,748.80$  69,035.20$  72,488.00$  

B Executive Support Hourly 31.00$  32.55$  34.18$  35.89$  37.68$  39.56$  41.54$  35.89

Maintenance Services Supervisor Bi-weekly 2,480.00$  2,604.00$  2,734.40$  2,871.20$  3,014.40$  3,164.80$  3,323.20$  
Property Manager Annually 64,480.00$  67,704.00$  71,094.40$  74,651.20$  78,374.40$  82,284.80$  86,403.20$  

C HR Generalist 32.00$  33.60$  35.28$  37.04$  38.89$  40.83$  42.87$  
PSH Supervisor 2,560.00$  2,688.00$  2,822.40$  2,963.20$  3,111.20$  3,266.40$  3,429.60$  

66,560.00$  69,888.00$  73,382.40$  77,043.20$  80,891.20$  84,926.40$  89,169.60$  

D Rent Assistance Supervisor Hourly 34.00$  35.70$  37.49$  39.36$  41.33$  43.40$  45.57$  39.36

Communications Specialist Bi-weekly 2,720.00$  2,856.00$  2,999.20$  3,148.80$  3,306.40$  3,472.00$  3,645.60$  
Annually 70,720.00$  74,256.00$  77,979.20$  81,868.80$  85,966.40$  90,272.00$  94,785.60$  

E Asset Manager Hourly 37.00$  38.85$  40.79$  42.83$  44.97$  47.22$  49.58$  42.83

CAP Manager Bi-weekly 2,960.00$  3,108.00$  3,263.20$  3,426.40$  3,597.60$  3,777.60$  3,966.40$  
Resident Services Manager Annually 76,960.00$  80,808.00$  84,843.20$  89,086.40$  93,537.60$  98,217.60$  103,126.40$  
Portfolio Manager

F Finance Manager Hourly 40.10$  42.11$  44.22$  46.43$  48.75$  51.19$  53.75$  
Project Development Manager Bi-weekly 3,208.00$  3,368.80$  3,537.60$  3,714.40$  3,900.00$  4,095.20$  4,300.00$  

Annually 83,408.00$  87,588.80$  91,977.60$  96,574.40$  101,400.00$  106,475.20$  111,800.00$  

G Energy Services Director Hourly 44.93$  47.18$  49.54$  52.02$  54.62$  57.35$  60.22$  
Bi-weekly 3,594.40$  3,774.40$  3,963.20$  4,161.60$  4,369.60$  4,588.00$  4,817.60$  
Annually 93,454.40$  98,134.40$  103,043.20$  108,201.60$  113,609.60$  119,288.00$  125,257.60$  

H Finance Director Hourly 50.45$  52.97$  55.62$  58.40$  61.32$  64.39$  67.61$  58.4

Human Resources Director Bi-weekly 4,036.00$  4,237.60$  4,449.60$  4,672.00$  4,905.60$  5,151.20$  5,408.80$  
IT Director Annually 104,936.00$  110,177.60$  115,689.60$  121,472.00$  127,545.60$  133,931.20$  140,628.80$  
Real Estate Development Director
Rent Assistance Director
Supportive Housing Director

I Deputy Director  Hourly 60.54$  63.57$  66.75$  70.09$  73.59$  77.27$  81.13$  70.09

Bi-weekly 4,843.20$  5,085.60$  5,340.00$  5,607.20$  5,887.20$  6,181.60$  6,490.40$  
Annually 125,923.20$  132,225.60$  138,840.00$  145,787.20$  153,067.20$  160,721.60$  168,750.40$  

J Executive Director Hourly 73.10$  76.76$  80.60$  84.63$  88.86$  93.30$  97.97$  84.63

Bi-weekly 5,848.00$  6,140.80$  6,448.00$  6,770.40$  7,108.80$  7,464.00$  7,837.60$  
Annually 152,048.00$  159,660.80$  167,648.00$  176,030.40$  184,828.80$  194,064.00$  203,777.60$  

COMPENSATION PLAN - SCHEDULE B - NON-REPRESENTED

25



APPENDIX B - RAW SURVEY DATA BYAPPENDIX B - RAW SURVEY DATA BY
CLASSIFICATIONCLASSIFICATION

Retirement Other

Organization Title BENCHMARK Y/N MIN MID MAX MIN MID MAX NOTES

Lane County Government Payroll Specialist A034 N 55,640.00$       65,072.80$       74,505.60$       12% 3,000.00$         65,072.92$       74,505.72$       
City of Eugene Payroll Specialist N 72,633.60$       81,588.00$       90,542.40$       12% 3,000.00$         81,588.12$       90,542.52$       
City of Springfield Payroll Analyst N 65,689.00$       78,826.50$       91,964.00$       12% 3,000.00$         78,826.62$       91,964.12$       
Home Forward Payroll & Benefits Specialist Y 53,322.93$       66,653.66$       79,984.39$       12% -$  66,653.78$       79,984.51$       
Housing Authority of Clackamas County Payroll Specialist EA19 N 60,857.68$       68,927.66$       76,997.64$       12% 50.00$  68,927.78$       76,997.76$       
Salem Housing Authority Payroll Specialist N 57,907.20$       67,870.40$       77,833.60$       12% 3922.56 67,870.52$       77,833.72$       
Washington County Housing Authority Payroll Specialist N 60,314.22$       66,678.58$       73,042.94$       12%
Housing Authority of Jackson County Accounting Technician II N 43,956.00$       50,862.00$       57,768.00$       12% -$  50,862.12$       57,768.12$       
Milliman Public Sector Survey -$  

Mean 58,790.08$       68,309.95$       77,829.82$       1,853.22$         68,543.12$       68,699.56$       
Median 59,110.71$       67,274.49$       77,415.62$       3,000.00$         67,870.52$       77,415.74$       

Homes for Good Payroll & HR Specialist

% Difference from Mean
% Difference from Median

Retirement Other

Organization Title BENCHMARK Y/N MIN MID MAX MIN MID MAX NOTES

Lane County Government Administrative Support Specialist N
City of Eugene Program Specialist N 55,702.40$       62,618.40$       69,534.40$       12% 3,000.00$      65,386.69$       73,132.61$       80,878.53$       
City of Springfield Administrative Specialist - Advanced N 51,517.00$       61,820.00$       72,123.00$       12% 3,000.00$      60,699.04$       72,238.40$       83,777.76$       
Home Forward HR Coordinator N 55,730.48$       64,556.31$       73,382.13$       12% -$  62,418.14$       72,303.07$       82,187.99$       
Housing Authority of Clackamas County Administrative Specialist NRP19Y N 65,438.37$       75,263.17$       85,087.97$       12% 50.00$  73,340.97$       84,344.75$       95,348.53$       
Salem Housing Authority Administrative Analyst, HA II N 60,798.40$       67,568.80$       74,339.20$       12% 3922.56 72,016.77$       79,599.62$       87,182.46$       
Washington County Housing Authority Administrative Specialist, Sr. N 53,331.20$       59,092.80$       64,854.40$       12% -$  59,730.94$       66,183.94$       72,636.93$       
Housing Authority of Jackson County No comparable  - 
Milliman Public Sector Survey Program Specialist N 64,334.40$       

Mean 57,086.31$       65,036.27$       73,220.18$       65,598.76$       74,633.73$       83,668.70$       
Median 55,716.44$       64,334.40$       72,752.57$       63,902.41$       72,717.84$       82,982.87$       

Homes for Good ADA & HR Coordinator 47,739.24$     55,264.08$     63,975.12$     12% 3,400.00$    56,867.95$     65,295.77$     75,052.13$     
% Difference from Mean -19.58% -17.68% -14.45% -15.35% -14.30% -11.48%

% Difference from Median -16.71% -16.41% -13.72% -12.37% -11.37% -10.57%

Retirement Other

Organization Title BENCHMARK Y/N MIN MID MAX MIN MID MAX NOTES

Lane County Government Facilities Maintenance Supervisor N3012 Y 68,452.80$       84,552.00$       100,672.00$      12% 3,000.00$      79,667.14$       97,698.24$       115,752.64$      
City of Eugene Faciltities Operations Supervisor 2 Y 69,971.20$       80,454.40$       90,937.60$       12% 3,000.00$      81,367.74$       93,108.93$       104,850.11$      
City of Springfield Associate Manager N 71,233.00$       85,479.50$       99,726.00$       12% 3,000.00$      82,780.96$       98,737.04$       114,693.12$      
Home Forward Maintenance Services Manager Y 63,362.24$       79,197.94$       95,033.65$       12% -$  70,965.71$       88,701.70$       106,437.69$      
Housing Authority of Clackamas County Building Maintenance Supervisor NRP25 Y 78,550.70$       92,297.29$       106,043.88$      12% 50.00$  88,026.79$       103,422.97$      118,819.15$      
Salem Housing Authority Supervisor, HA I Y 64,272.00$       75,306.42$       86,340.84$       12% 3922.56 75,907.20$       88,265.75$       100,624.30$      
Washington County Housing Authority No comparable N 12%
Housing Authority of Jackson County Maintenance Director N 79,998.00$       96,282.00$       112,566.00$      12% -$  89,597.76$       107,835.84$      126,073.92$      
Milliman Public Sector Survey Facilities Maintenance Supervisor Y 89,939.20$       89,939.20$       

Mean 70,834.28$       85,438.59$       98,760.00$       81,187.61$       95,963.71$       112,464.42$      
Median 69,971.20$       85,015.75$       99,726.00$       81,367.74$       95,403.58$       114,693.12$      

Homes for Good Maintenance Services Supervisor 59,133.72$      68,454.72$      79,244.88$      12% 3,400.00$    69,629.77$     80,069.29$     92,154.27$     
% Difference from Mean -19.79% -24.81% -24.63% -16.60% -19.85% -22.04%

% Difference from Median -18.33% -24.19% -25.85% -16.86% -19.15% -24.46%

Retirement Other

Organization Title BENCHMARK Y/N MIN MID MAX MIN MID MAX NOTES

Lane County Government Human Services Supervisor N3012 N 68,452.80$       84,552.00$       100,672.00$      12% 3,000.00$      79,667.14$       97,698.24$       115,752.64$      
City of Eugene Management Analyst N 83,137.60$       95,596.80$       108,056.00$      12% 3,000.00$      96,114.11$       110,068.42$      124,022.72$      MA may supervise @ city
City of Springfield Associate Manager N 71,233.00$       85,479.50$       99,726.00$       12% 3,000.00$      82,780.96$       98,737.04$       114,693.12$      
Home Forward Property Manager Y 58,119.27$       72,653.94$       87,188.62$       12% -$  65,093.58$       81,372.42$       97,651.25$       
Housing Authority of Clackamas County Housing Property Management Supervisor NRP24 Y 86,601.20$       96,832.29$       107,063.38$      12% 50.00$  97,043.35$       108,502.16$      119,960.98$      
Salem Housing Authority Supervisor, HA I Y 64,272.00$       75,306.42$       86,340.84$       12% 3922.56 75,907.20$       88,265.75$       100,624.30$      
Washington County Housing Authority No comparable  - 12%
Housing Authority of Jackson County No comparable  - 12%
Milliman Public Sector Survey No comparable  - 

Mean 71,969.31$       85,070.16$       98,174.47$       82,767.72$       97,440.67$       112,117.50$      
Median 69,842.90$       85,015.75$       100,199.00$      81,224.05$       98,217.64$       115,222.88$      

Homes for Good Property Management Supervisor 59,133.72$      68,454.72$      79,244.88$      12% 3,400.00$    69,629.77$     80,069.29$     92,154.27$     
% Difference from Mean -21.71% -24.27% -23.89% -18.87% -21.70% -21.66%

% Difference from Median -18.11% -24.19% -26.44% -16.65% -22.67% -25.03%

Retirement Other

Organization Title BENCHMARK Y/N MIN MID MAX MIN MID MAX NOTES

Lane County Government Human Services Supervisor N3012 N 68,452.80$       84,552.00$       100,672.00$      12% 3,000.00$      79,667.14$       97,698.24$       115,752.64$      
City of Eugene Management Analyst Y 83,137.60$       95,596.80$       108,056.00$      12% 3,000.00$      96,114.11$       110,068.42$      124,022.72$      MA may supervise @ city
City of Springfield Associate Manager N 71,233.00$       85,479.50$       99,726.00$       12% 3,000.00$      82,780.96$       98,737.04$       114,693.12$      
Home Forward Program Supervisor Y 63,362.24$       79,197.94$       95,033.65$       12% -$  70,965.71$       88,701.70$       106,437.69$      
Housing Authority of Clackamas County Human Services Supervisor NRP25 Y 78,550.70$       92,297.29$       106,043.88$      12% 50.00$  88,026.79$       103,422.97$      118,819.15$      
Salem Housing Authority Supervisor, HA I Y 64,272.00$       75,306.42$       86,340.84$       12% 3,922.56$      75,907.20$       88,265.75$       100,624.30$      
Washington County Housing Authority No comparable  - 12%
Housing Authority of Jackson County No comparable  - 12%
Milliman Public Sector Survey Administrative Supervisro Y 79,580.80$       

Mean 71,501.39$       84,572.97$       99,312.06$       82,243.65$       97,815.69$       113,391.60$      
Median 69,842.90$       84,552.00$       100,199.00$      81,224.05$       98,217.64$       115,222.88$      

Homes for Good Rent Assistance Supervisor 59,133.72$     68,454.72$     79,244.88$     12% 3,400.00$    69,629.77$     80,069.29$     92,154.27$     
% Difference from Mean -20.91% -23.55% -25.32% -18.12% -22.16% -23.05%

% Difference from Median -18.11% -23.52% -26.44% -16.65% -22.67% -25.03%

Payroll & HR Specialist
ANNUAL COMPENSATION ADJUSTED

ADA & HR Coordinator
ANNUAL COMPENSATION ADJUSTED

Maintenance Services Supervisor
ANNUAL COMPENSATION ADJUSTED

Property Management Supervisor
ANNUAL COMPENSATION ADJUSTED

Rent Assistance Supervisor
ANNUAL COMPENSATION ADJUSTED

26



Retirement Other

Organization Title BENCHMARK Y/N MIN MID MAX MIN MID MAX NOTES

Lane County Government Executive Assistant Y 53,040.00$       65,520.00$       77,937.60$       12% 3,000.00$      62,404.80$       76,382.40$       90,290.11$       
City of Eugene Executive Assistant Y 59,446.40$       68,359.20$       77,272.00$       12% 3,000.00$      69,579.97$       79,562.30$       89,544.64$       
City of Springfield Management Analyst Y 61,261.00$       73,513.50$       85,766.00$       12% 3,000.00$      71,612.32$       85,335.12$       99,057.92$       
Home Forward Executive Assistant Y 48,914.95$       61,148.54$       73,382.13$       12% -$  54,784.74$       68,486.37$       82,187.99$       
Housing Authority of Clackamas County Executive Assistant Y 59,179.35$       69,535.96$       79,892.57$       12% 50.00$  66,330.87$       77,930.28$       89,529.68$       
Salem Housing Authority Executive Assistant Y 61,942.00$       72,612.60$       83,283.20$       12% 3,922.56$      73,297.60$       85,248.67$       97,199.74$       
Washington County Housing Authority Executive Assistant Y 65,660.86$       72,728.33$       79,795.79$       12% -$  73,540.16$       81,455.72$       89,371.28$       
Housing Authority of Jackson County Executive Assistant Y 59,696.00$       66,128.50$       72,561.00$       12% -$  66,859.52$       74,063.92$       81,268.32$       
Milliman Public Sector Survey Executive Assistant y 67,267.20$       

Mean 58,642.57$       68,534.87$       78,736.29$       67,301.25$       78,558.10$       89,806.21$       
Median 59,571.20$       68,359.20$       78,866.70$       68,219.74$       78,746.29$       89,537.16$       

Homes for Good Executive Support 60,793.92$     70,376.52$     81,469.68$     12% 3,400.00$    71,489.19$     82,221.70$     94,646.04$     
% Difference from Mean 3.54% 2.62% 3.36% 5.86% 4.46% 5.11%

% Difference from Median 2.01% 2.87% 3.20% 4.57% 4.23% 5.40%

Retirement Other

Organization Title BENCHMARK Y/N MIN MID MAX MIN MID MAX NOTES

Lane County Government Public Information Officer Y 68,452.00$       84,552.00$       100,672.00$      12% 3,000.00$      79,666.24$       97,698.24$       115,752.64$      
City of Eugene Management Analyst N 83,137.60$       95,596.80$       108,056.00$      12% 3,000.00$      96,114.11$       110,068.42$      124,022.72$      
City of Springfield Public Informatin & Education Analyst Y 61,261.00$       73,513.50$       85,766.00$       12% 3,000.00$      71,612.32$       85,335.12$       99,057.92$       
Home Forward Communications Coordinator Y 59,328.05$       74,174.29$       89,020.53$       12% -$  66,447.42$       83,075.20$       99,702.99$       
Housing Authority of Clackamas County Public Information Officer Y 83,271.15$       97,843.59$       112,416.03$      12% 50.00$  93,313.69$       109,634.82$      125,955.95$      
Salem Housing Authority Management Analyst, HA II N 75,046.44$       87,932.04$       100,817.64$      12% 3922.56 87,974.57$       102,406.44$      116,838.32$      
Washington County Housing Authority Public Affairs & Communications Coordinator Y 82,039.17$       90,859.03$       99,678.89$       12% -$  91,883.87$       101,762.11$      111,640.36$      
Housing Authority of Jackson County No comparable  - 12% -$  
Milliman Public Sector Survey Public Information Officer Y 90,480.00$       

Mean 73,219.34$       86,868.91$       99,489.58$       83,858.89$       98,568.62$       113,281.56$      
Median 75,046.44$       89,206.02$       100,672.00$      87,974.57$       101,762.11$      115,752.64$      

Homes for Good Communications Specialist 60,793.92$      70,376.52$      81,469.68$      12% 3,400.00$    71,489.19$     82,221.70$     94,646.04$     
% Difference from Mean -20.44% -23.43% -22.12% -17.30% -19.88% -19.69%

% Difference from Median -23.44% -26.76% -23.57% -23.06% -23.77% -22.30%

Retirement Other

Organization Title BENCHMARK Y/N MIN MID MAX MIN MID MAX NOTES

Lane County Government Human Services Supervisor N3012 Y 68,452.80$       84,552.00$       100,672.00$      12% 3,000.00$      79,667.14$       97,698.24$       115,752.64$      
City of Eugene No Comparable  - 
City of Springfield Associate Manager N 71,233.00$       85,479.50$       99,726.00$       12% 3,000.00$      82,780.96$       98,737.04$       114,693.12$      
Home Forward Program Supervisor Y 63,362.24$       79,197.95$       95,033.65$       12% -$  70,965.71$       88,701.70$       106,437.69$      
Housing Authority of Clackamas County Housing Property Management Supervisor NRP24 Y 86,601.20$       96,832.29$       107,063.38$      12% 50.00$  97,043.35$       108,502.16$      119,960.98$      
Salem Housing Authority Supervisor, HA I Y 64,272.00$       75,306.42$       86,340.84$       12% 3922.56 75,907.20$       88,265.75$       100,624.30$      
Washington County Housing Authority No Comparable  - 12%
Housing Authority of Jackson County No Comparable  - 12%
Milliman Public Sector Survey No Comparable  - 

Mean 70,784.25$       84,273.63$       97,767.17$       81,272.87$       96,380.98$       111,493.75$      
Median 68,452.80$       84,552.00$       99,726.00$       79,667.14$       97,698.24$       114,693.12$      

Homes for Good PSH Supervisor 62,090.64$      71,877.72$      83,207.52$      12% 3,400.00$    72,941.52$     83,903.05$     96,592.42$     
% Difference from Mean -14.00% -17.25% -17.50% -11.42% -14.87% -15.43%

% Difference from Median -10.25% -17.63% -19.85% -9.22% -16.44% -18.74%

Retirement Other

Organization Title BENCHMARK Y/N MIN MID MAX MIN MID MAX NOTES

Lane County Government Talent Acquisition Analyst N4102E N 68,577.60$       84,697.60$       100,817.60$      12% 3,000.00$      79,806.91$       97,861.31$       115,915.71$      
City of Eugene Management Analyst Y 83,137.60$       95,596.80$       108,056.00$      12% 3,000.00$      96,114.11$       110,068.42$      124,022.72$      
City of Springfield HR Analyst II Y 61,261.00$       73,513.50$       85,766.00$       12% 3,000.00$      71,612.32$       85,335.12$       99,057.92$       
Home Forward Human Resources Generalist Y 58,119.27$       72,653.95$       87,188.62$       12% -$  65,093.58$       81,372.42$       97,651.25$       
Housing Authority of Clackamas County Human Resources Specialist NRP21 Y 59,179.35$       69,535.96$       79,892.57$       12% 50.00$  66,330.87$       77,930.28$       89,529.68$       
Salem Housing Authority Human Resrouces Specialist Y 63,835.20$       74,817.60$       85,800.00$       12% 3,922.56$      75,417.98$       87,718.27$       100,018.56$      
Washington County Housing Authority Human Resources Analyst I Y 65,672.88$       74,735.55$       83,798.21$       12% -$  73,553.63$       83,703.81$       93,854.00$       
Housing Authority of Jackson County Human Resrouces Manager Y 59,696.00$       71,847.00$       83,998.00$       12% -$  66,859.52$       80,468.64$       94,077.76$       
Milliman Public Sector Survey Human Resources Generalist Y 79,809.60$       

Mean 64,934.86$       77,467.51$       89,414.63$       74,348.62$       88,057.28$       101,765.95$      
Median 62,548.10$       74,735.55$       85,783.00$       72,582.97$       84,519.47$       98,354.59$       

Homes for Good Human Resources Generalist 62,681.88$     72,561.96$     83,999.52$     12% 3,400.00$    73,603.71$     84,669.40$     97,479.46$     
% Difference from Mean -3.59% -6.76% -6.45% -1.01% -4.00% -4.40%

% Difference from Median 0.21% -3.00% -2.12% 1.39% 0.18% -0.90%

Retirement Other

Organization Title BENCHMARK Y/N MIN MID MAX MIN MID MAX NOTES

Lane County Government Risk Manager N3002A N 79,476.80$       98,176.00$       116,812.80$      12% 3,000.00$      92,014.02$       112,957.12$      133,830.34$      
City of Eugene Management Analyst N 83,137.60$       95,596.80$       108,056.00$      12% 3,000.00$      96,114.11$       110,068.42$      124,022.72$      
City of Springfield Associate Manager - Advanced N 77,881.00$       93,457.00$       109,033.00$      12% 3,000.00$      90,226.72$       107,671.84$      125,116.96$      
Home Forward Program Manager N 75,265.72$       94,082.15$       112,898.58$      12% -$  84,297.61$       105,372.01$      126,446.41$      
Housing Authority of Clackamas County Housing Asset Manager NRP21 Y 87,434.94$       102,735.98$      118,037.01$      12% 50.00$  97,977.13$       115,114.29$      132,251.45$      
Salem Housing Authority Supervisor HA III Y 78728.04 92,279.22$       105830.4 12% 3,922.56$      92,097.96$       107,275.29$      122,452.61$      
Washington County Housing Authority Housing Asset Manager Y 80,030.59$       88,630.38$       97,230.16$       12% -$  89,634.26$       99,266.02$       108,897.78$      
Housing Authority of Jackson County Asset Manager Y 59,696.00$       71,847.00$       83,998.00$       12% -$  66,859.52$       80,468.64$       94,077.76$       
Milliman Public Sector Survey No Comparable

Mean 77,706.34$       92,100.57$       106,486.99$      88,652.67$       104,774.20$      120,887.00$      
Median 79,102.42$       93,769.58$       108,544.50$      91,120.37$       107,473.56$      124,569.84$      

Homes for Good Asset Manager 66,442.80$      76,915.92$      89,039.76$      12% 3,400.00$    77,815.94$     89,545.83$     103,124.53$   
% Difference from Mean -16.95% -19.74% -19.59% -13.93% -17.01% -17.22%

% Difference from Median -19.05% -21.91% -21.91% -17.10% -20.02% -20.80%

Executive Support
ANNUAL COMPENSATION ADJUSTED

Communications Specialist
ANNUAL COMPENSATION ADJUSTED

PSH Supervisor
ANNUAL COMPENSATION ADJUSTED

Human Resources Generalist
ANNUAL COMPENSATION ADJUSTED

Asset Manager
ANNUAL COMPENSATION ADJUSTED

27



Retirement Other

Organization Title BENCHMARK Y/N MIN MID MAX MIN MID MAX NOTES

Lane County Government Capital Improvements Supervisor N4002B Y 75,982.40$       93,849.60$       111,737.60$      12% 3,000.00$      88,100.29$       108,111.55$      128,146.11$      
City of Eugene Facilities Project Manager, Principal N 76,252.80$       87,713.60$       99,174.40$       12% 3,000.00$      88,403.14$       101,239.23$      114,075.33$      
City of Springfield Associate Manager - Advanced N 77,881.00$       93,457.00$       109,033.00$      12% 3,000.00$      90,226.72$       107,671.84$      125,116.96$      
Home Forward Program Manager N 75,265.72$       94,082.15$       112,898.58$      12% -$  84,297.61$       105,372.01$      126,446.41$      
Housing Authority of Clackamas County Housing Asset Manager NRP21 Y 87,434.94$       102,735.98$      118,037.01$      12% 50.00$  97,977.13$       115,114.29$      132,251.45$      
Salem Housing Authority Supervisor HA III Y 78,728.04$       92,279.22$       105,830.40$      12% 3,922.56$      92,097.96$       107,275.29$      122,452.61$      
Washington County Housing Authority Capital Improvement Project Manager Y 84,092.50$       93,132.10$       102,171.70$      12% -$  94,183.60$       104,307.95$      114,432.30$      
Housing Authority of Jackson County Asset Manager Y 59,696.00$       71,847.00$       83,998.00$       12% -$  66,859.52$       80,468.64$       94,077.76$       
Milliman Public Sector Survey Capital Projects Manager Y 94,848.00$       

Mean 76,916.68$       91,549.41$       105,360.09$      87,768.25$       103,695.10$      119,624.87$      
Median 77,066.90$       93,457.00$       107,431.70$      89,314.93$       106,323.65$      123,784.78$      

Homes for Good CAP Manager 66,442.80$      76,915.92$      89,039.76$      12% 3,400.00$    77,815.94$     89,545.83$     103,124.53$   
% Difference from Mean -15.76% -19.03% -18.33% -12.79% -15.80% -16.00%

% Difference from Median -15.99% -21.51% -20.66% -14.78% -18.74% -20.03%

Retirement Other

Organization Title BENCHMARK Y/N MIN MID MAX MIN MID MAX NOTES

Lane County Government Program Manager N3002 N 76,772.80$       94,827.20$       112,860.80$      12% 3,000.00$      88,985.54$       109,206.46$      129,404.10$      
City of Eugene Department Services Manager N 88,670.40$       104,187.20$      119,704.00$      12% 3,000.00$      102,310.85$      119,689.66$      137,068.48$      
City of Springfield Program Manager N 87,852.00$       105,422.50$      122,993.00$      12% 3,000.00$      101,394.24$      121,073.20$      140,752.16$      
Home Forward Regional Property Manager Y 75,265.72$       94,082.15$       112,898.58$      12% -$  84,297.61$       105,372.01$      126,446.41$      
Housing Authority of Clackamas County Housing Portfolio Manager NRP27 Y 79,305.14$       93,184.26$       107,063.38$      12% 50.00$  88,871.76$       104,416.37$      119,960.99$      
Salem Housing Authority Supervisor HA III Y 78,728.04$       92,279.22$       105,830.40$      12% 3,922.56$      92,097.96$       107,275.29$      122,452.61$      
Washington County Housing Authority Housing Program Manager N 92,787.36$       105,584.09$      118,380.82$      12% -$  103,921.84$      118,254.18$      132,586.52$      
Housing Authority of Jackson County No Comparable  - 
Milliman Public Sector Survey No Comparable  - 

Mean 82,768.78$       98,509.52$       114,247.28$      94,554.26$       112,183.88$      129,810.18$      
Median 79,305.14$       94,827.20$       112,898.58$      92,097.96$       109,206.46$      129,404.10$      

Homes for Good Portfolio Manager 66,442.80$      76,915.92$      89,039.76$      12% 3,400.00$    77,815.94$     89,545.83$     103,124.53$   
% Difference from Mean -24.57% -28.07% -28.31% -21.51% -25.28% -25.88%

% Difference from Median -19.36% -23.29% -26.80% -18.35% -21.96% -25.48%

Retirement Other

Organization Title BENCHMARK Y/N MIN MID MAX MIN MID MAX NOTES

Lane County Government Program Manager N3002 N 76,772.80$       94,827.20$       112,860.80$      12% 3,000.00$      88,985.54$       109,206.46$      129,404.10$      
City of Eugene Department Services Manager N 88,670.40$       104,187.20$      119,704.00$      12% 3,000.00$      102,310.85$      119,689.66$      137,068.48$      
City of Springfield Program Manager N 87,852.00$       105,422.50$      122,993.00$      12% 3,000.00$      101,394.24$      121,073.20$      140,752.16$      
Home Forward Program Manager Y 75,265.72$       94,082.15$       112,898.58$      12% -$  84,297.61$       105,372.01$      126,446.41$      
Housing Authority of Clackamas County Human Services Supervisor NRP25 N 71,932.88$       84,521.33$       97,109.78$       12% 50.00$  80,614.83$       94,713.89$       108,812.95$      
Salem Housing Authority Supervisor HA III Y 78,728.04$       92,279.22$       105830.4 12% 3,922.56$      92,097.96$       107,275.29$      122,452.61$      
Washington County Housing Authority Housing Program Manager N 99,771.36$       113,531.28$      127,291.20$      12% 111,743.92$      127,155.03$      142,566.14$      
Housing Authority of Jackson County No Comparable  - 12%
Milliman Public Sector Survey No Comparable  - 

Mean 82,713.31$       98,407.27$       114,098.25$      94,492.13$       112,069.36$      129,643.26$      
Median 78,728.04$       94,827.20$       112,898.58$      92,097.96$       109,206.46$      129,404.10$      

Homes for Good Resident Services Manager 66,442.80$      76,915.92$      89,039.76$      12% 3,400.00$    77,815.94$     89,545.83$     103,124.53$   
% Difference from Mean -24.49% -27.94% -28.14% -21.43% -25.15% -25.72%

% Difference from Median -18.49% -23.29% -26.80% -18.35% -21.96% -25.48%

Retirement Other

Organization Title BENCHMARK Y/N MIN MID MAX MIN MID MAX NOTES

Lane County Government Fiscal Manager N2034 Y 76,772.80$       94,827.20$       112,860.80$      12% 3,000.00$      88,985.54$       109,206.46$      129,404.10$      
City of Eugene Sr. Accountant Y 88,670.40$       104,187.20$      119,704.00$      12% 3,000.00$      102,310.85$      119,689.66$      137,068.48$      Has supervisory duties
City of Springfield Program Manager Y 87,852.00$       105,422.50$      122,993.00$      12% 3,000.00$      101,394.24$      121,073.20$      140,752.16$      
Home Forward Accounting Manager Y 69,051.83$       86,314.79$       103,577.75$      12% -$  77,338.05$       96,672.56$       116,007.08$      
Housing Authority of Clackamas County Accounting Manager NRP30 Y 91,806.57$       107,872.97$      123,939.37$      12% 50.00$  102,873.36$      120,867.73$      138,862.09$      
Salem Housing Authority Manager, HA I Y 82,575.96$       96,761.58$       110,947.20$      12% 3,922.56$      96,407.64$       112,295.53$      128,183.42$      
Washington County Housing Authority Chief Accountant Y 88,344.46$       97,846.03$       107,347.59$      12% -$  98,945.80$       109,587.55$      120,229.30$      
Housing Authority of Jackson County No Comparable 12% -$  -$  -$  -$  
Milliman Public Sector Survey

Mean 83,582.00$       99,033.18$       114,481.39$      83,531.93$       98,674.09$       113,813.33$      
Median 87,852.00$       97,846.03$       112,860.80$      97,676.72$       110,941.54$      128,793.76$      

Homes for Good Finance Manager 66,442.80$      76,915.92$      89,039.76$      12% 3,400.00$    77,815.94$     89,545.83$     103,124.53$   
% Difference from Mean -25.80% -28.76% -28.57% -7.35% -10.19% -10.36%

% Difference from Median -32.22% -27.21% -26.75% -25.52% -23.89% -24.89%

Retirement Other

Organization Title BENCHMARK Y/N MIN MID MAX MIN MID MAX NOTES

Lane County Government Program Manager N3002 N 76,772.80$       94,827.20$       112,860.80$      12% 3,000.00$      88,985.54$       109,206.46$      129,404.10$      
City of Eugene Department Services Manager N 88,670.40$       104,187.20$      119,704.00$      12% 3,000.00$      102,310.85$      119,689.66$      137,068.48$      
City of Springfield Program Manager N 87,852.00$       105,422.50$      122,993.00$      12% 3,000.00$      101,394.24$      121,073.20$      140,752.16$      
Home Forward Program Manager N 75,265.72$       94,082.15$       112,898.58$      12% -$  84,297.61$       105,372.01$      126,446.41$      
Housing Authority of Clackamas County Development Agency Supervisor NRP29 Y 87,434.94$       102,735.98$      118,037.01$      12% 50.00$  97,977.13$       115,114.29$      132,251.45$      
Salem Housing Authority Manager, HA I Y 82,575.96$       96,761.58$       110,947.20$      12% 3922.56 96,407.64$       112,295.53$      128,183.42$      
Washington County Housing Authority Housing Program Manager N 92,787.36$       105,584.09$      118,380.82$      12% -$  103,921.84$      118,254.18$      132,586.52$      
Housing Authority of Jackson County No Comparable  - 12% -$  -$  -$  -$  
Milliman Public Sector Survey Capital Projects Manager II N 106,100.80$      

Mean 84,479.88$       101,212.69$      116,545.92$      84,411.86$       100,125.67$      115,836.57$      
Median 87,434.94$       103,461.59$      118,037.01$      97,192.38$       113,704.91$      130,827.77$      

Homes for Good Project Development Manager 71,276.76$      82,511.88$      95,517.84$      12% 3,400.00$    83,229.97$     95,813.31$     110,379.98$   
% Difference from Mean . -22.66% -22.01% -1.42% -4.50% -4.94%

% Difference from Median -22.67% -25.39% -23.58% -16.78% -18.67% -18.52%

CAP Manager
ANNUAL COMPENSATION ADJUSTED

Portfolio Manager
ANNUAL COMPENSATION ADJUSTED

Resident Services Manager
ANNUAL COMPENSATION ADJUSTED

Finance Manager
ANNUAL COMPENSATION ADJUSTED

Project Development Manager
ANNUAL COMPENSATION ADJUSTED

28



Retirement Other

Organization Title BENCHMARK Y/N MIN MID MAX MIN MID MAX NOTES

Community Services Consortium Weatherization Program Manager Y 72,800.00$       12% 3,000.00$      3,000.00$         84,536.00$       3,000.00$         
United Community Action Network Supportive Services Director N 83,408.00$       
Housing Authority of Clackamas County Weatherization Services Program Manager Y 67,538.53$       79,358.40$       91,178.26$       
Washington County Housing Authority Sustainability Program Manager N
OHCS N

Mean
Median

Homes for Good Energy Services Director 72,788.64$       84,261.96$       97,543.80$       12% 3,400.00$      76,188.64$       87,661.96$       100,943.80$      
% Difference from Mean

% Difference from Median

Retirement Other

Organization Title BENCHMARK Y/N MIN MID MAX MIN MID MAX NOTES

Lane County Government Technology & Infastructure Services Manager N2032C Y 94,369.60$       116,563.20$      138,798.40$      12% 3,000.00$      108,693.95$      133,550.78$      158,454.21$      
City of Eugene IT Technical Operations Manager ISD Deputy Director Y 115,897.60$      136,177.60$      156,457.60$      12% 3,000.00$      132,805.31$      155,518.91$      178,232.51$      
City of Springfield Senior Manager N 104,472.00$      125,366.50$      146,261.00$      12% 3,000.00$      120,008.64$      143,410.48$      166,812.32$      
Home Forward Information Technology Applications Manager Y 89,421.73$       111,782.02$      134,142.31$      12% -$  100,152.34$      125,195.86$      150,239.39$      
Housing Authority of Clackamas County Tech Services Manager NRP34 Y 111,591.80$      131,120.05$      150,648.30$      12% 50.00$  125,032.82$      146,904.46$      168,776.10$      
Salem Housing Authority Manager, HA III N 103,272.00$      121,035.18$      138,798.36$      12% 3,922.56$      119,587.20$      139,481.96$      159,376.72$      
Washington County Housing Authority IT Project Manager Y 105,001.54$      116,299.42$      127,597.30$      12% -$  117,601.72$      130,255.35$      142,908.98$      
Housing Authority of Jackson County No Comparable  - 12%
Milliman Public Sector Survey Information Systems Manager Y 127,233.60$      

Mean 103,432.32$      123,197.20$      141,814.75$      117,697.43$      139,188.26$      160,685.75$      
Median 104,472.00$      123,200.84$      138,798.40$      119,587.20$      139,481.96$      159,376.72$      

Homes for Good IT Director 79,134.24$      91,607.76$      106,047.36$    12% 3,400.00$    92,030.35$     106,000.69$   122,173.04$   
% Difference from Mean -30.70% -34.48% -33.73% -27.89% -31.31% -31.52%

% Difference from Median -32.02% -34.49% -30.88% -29.94% -31.59% -30.45%

Retirement Other

Organization Title BENCHMARK Y/N MIN MID MAX MIN MID MAX NOTES

Lane County Government Labor Relations Manager N 86,777.60$       107,161.60$      127,524.80$      12% 3,000.00$      100,190.91$      123,020.99$      145,827.78$      
City of Eugene Employee Resource Center Associate Director / Labor Relations Mgr Y 115,137.60$      135,797.60$      156,457.60$      12% 3,000.00$      131,954.11$      155,093.31$      178,232.51$      
City of Springfield Senior Manager N 104,472.00$      125,366.50$      146,261.00$      12% 3,000.00$      120,008.64$      143,410.48$      166,812.32$      
Home Forward Director of Human Resources Y 106,257.48$      138,132.79$      170,008.09$      12% -$  119,008.38$      154,708.72$      190,409.06$      
Housing Authority of Clackamas County Human Resrouces Manager, Sr. NRP32 N 101,216.97$      118,929.73$      136,642.49$      12% 50.00$  113,413.01$      133,251.30$      153,089.59$      
Salem Housing Authority Manager, HA III N 103,272.00$      121,035.18$      138,798.36$      12% 3,922.56$      119,587.20$      139,481.96$      159,376.72$      
Washington County Housing Authority Human Resrouces Systems Manager Y 84,092.27$       95,686.18$       107,280.08$      12% -$  94,183.34$       107,168.52$      120,153.69$      
Housing Authority of Jackson County No Comparable  - 12%
Milliman Public Sector Survey Human Resources Manager N 117,291.20$      

Mean 100,175.13$      119,925.10$      140,424.63$      114,049.37$      136,590.75$      159,128.81$      
Median 103,272.00$      119,982.46$      138,798.36$      119,008.38$      139,481.96$      159,376.72$      

Homes for Good Human Resources Director 79,134.24$      91,607.76$      106,047.36$    12% 3,400.00$    92,030.35$     106,000.69$   122,173.04$   
% Difference from Mean -26.59% -30.91% -32.42% -23.93% -28.86% -30.25%

% Difference from Median -30.50% -30.97% -30.88% -29.31% -31.59% -30.45%

Retirement Other

Organization Title BENCHMARK Y/N MIN MID MAX MIN MID MAX NOTES

Lane County Government Housing Program Manager N30001D N 96,366.40$       118,955.20$      141,668.80$      12% 3,000.00$      110,930.37$      136,229.82$      161,669.06$      
City of Eugene Finance Director, Asst Y 115,894.60$      136,176.10$      156,457.60$      12% 3,000.00$      132,801.95$      155,517.23$      178,232.51$      
City of Springfield Senior Manager N 104,472.00$      125,366.50$      146,261.00$      12% 3,000.00$      120,008.64$      143,410.48$      166,812.32$      
Home Forward Controller Y 106,257.48$      138,132.79$      170,008.09$      12% -$  119,008.38$      154,708.72$      190,409.06$      
Housing Authority of Clackamas County Housing & Community Development Finance Manager NRP 32 Y 101,216.97$      118,929.73$      136,642.49$      12% 50.00$  113,413.01$      133,251.30$      153,089.59$      
Salem Housing Authority Manager, HA III N 103,272.00$      121,035.18$      138,798.36$      12% 3,922.56$      119,587.20$      139,481.96$      159,376.72$      
Washington County Housing Authority Housing Services Controller Y 105,001.54$      119,490.79$      133,980.04$      12% -$  117,601.72$      133,829.68$      150,057.64$      
Housing Authority of Jackson County Finance Director Y 107,206.00$      129,027.50$      150,849.00$      12% -$  120,070.72$      144,510.80$      168,950.88$      
Milliman Public Sector Survey Finance Manager Y 122,158.40$      

Mean 104,960.87$      125,474.69$      146,833.17$      119,177.75$      142,617.50$      166,074.72$      
Median 104,736.77$      122,158.40$      143,964.90$      119,297.79$      141,446.22$      164,240.69$      

Homes for Good Finance Director 83,882.40$      97,104.48$      112,410.48$    12% 3,400.00$    97,348.29$     112,157.02$   129,299.74$   
% Difference from Mean -25.13% -29.22% -30.62% -22.42% -27.16% -28.44%

% Difference from Median -24.86% -25.80% -28.07% -22.55% -26.11% -27.02%

Retirement Other

Organization Title BENCHMARK Y/N MIN MID MAX MIN MID MAX NOTES

Lane County Government Housing Program Manager N30001D N 96,366.40$       118,955.20$      141,668.80$      12% 3,000.00$      110,930.37$      136,229.82$      161,669.06$      
City of Eugene Community Development Director Y 122,844.80$      144,341.60$      165,838.40$      12% 3,000.00$      140,586.18$      164,662.59$      188,739.01$      
City of Springfield Senior Manager N 104,472.00$      125,366.50$      146,261.00$      12% 3,000.00$      120,008.64$      143,410.48$      166,812.32$      
Home Forward Director of Asset Management Y 106,257.48$      138,132.79$      170,008.09$      12% -$  119,008.38$      154,708.72$      190,409.06$      
Housing Authority of Clackamas County HACC Development Manager Sr NRP 33 Y 106,277.20$      124,875.99$      143,474.78$      12% 50.00$  119,080.46$      139,911.11$      160,741.75$      
Salem Housing Authority Manager, HA III N 103,272.00$      121,035.18$      138,798.36$      12% 3,922.56$      119,587.20$      139,481.96$      159,376.72$      
Washington County Housing Authority Community Development Program Manager Y 105,001.65$      119,489.45$      133,977.25$      12% -$  117,601.85$      133,828.18$      150,054.52$      
Housing Authority of Jackson County Development Director Y 107,206.00$      129,027.50$      150,849.00$      12% -$  120,070.72$      144,510.80$      168,950.88$      
Milliman Public Sector Survey Community Development Director N 138,590.40$      

Mean 106,462.19$      128,868.29$      148,859.46$      120,859.22$      144,592.96$      168,344.17$      
Median 105,629.57$      125,366.50$      144,867.89$      119,333.83$      141,660.79$      164,240.69$      

Homes for Good Real Estate Development Director 83,882.40$      97,104.48$      112,410.48$    12% 3,400.00$    97,348.29$     112,157.02$   129,299.74$   
% Difference from Mean -26.92% -32.71% -32.42% -24.15% -28.92% -30.20%

% Difference from Median -25.93% -29.10% -28.87% -22.58% -26.31% -27.02%

Top level function for smaller organizations. Typically 2nd or 3rd 

level within larger organizations.

Top level function for smaller organizations. Typically 2nd or 3rd 

level within larger organizations.

ANNUAL COMPENSATION ADJUSTED

Energy Services Director
ANNUAL COMPENSATION ADJUSTED

Top level function for smaller organizations. Typically 2nd or 3rd 

level within larger organizations.

Finance Director
ANNUAL COMPENSATION ADJUSTED

Real Estate Development Director
ANNUAL COMPENSATION ADJUSTED

IT Director
ANNUAL COMPENSATION ADJUSTED

Human Resources Director

29



Retirement Other

Organization Title BENCHMARK Y/N MIN MID MAX MIN MID MAX NOTES

Lane County Government Assistant Department Director N2012 Y 115,627.20$      142,833.60$      170,040.00$      12% 3,000.00$      132,502.46$      162,973.63$      193,444.80$      
City of Eugene Communications Director Y 115,894.60$      136,176.10$      156,457.60$      12% 3,000.00$      132,801.95$      155,517.23$      178,232.51$      
City of Springfield Executive Manager N 114,444.00$      137,332.50$      160,221.00$      12% 3,000.00$      131,177.28$      156,812.40$      182,447.52$      
Home Forward Director of Policy & Planning N 106,257.48$      138,123.08$      170,008.09$      12% -$  119,008.38$      154,697.85$      190,409.06$      
Housing Authority of Clackamas County Deputy Director of Public & Government Affairs NRP 36 N 136,926.40$      160,898.40$      184,870.40$      12% 50.00$  153,407.57$      180,256.21$      207,104.85$      
Housing Authority of Clackamas County HACC Development Director N 106,273.07$      124,872.45$      143,471.82$      
Salem Housing Authority Division Manager N 119,662.44$      140,233.62$      160,804.80$      12% 3,922.56$      137,944.49$      160,984.21$      184,023.94$      
Washington County Housing Authority Public Affairs & Communications Officer Y 121,387.44$      134,442.42$      147,497.40$      12% -$  135,953.93$      150,575.51$      165,197.09$      
Housing Authority of Jackson County No Comparable  - 12%
Milliman Public Sector Survey Government Relations Manager N 136,344.00$      

Mean 117,059.08$      139,028.46$      161,671.39$      134,685.15$      160,259.58$      185,837.11$      
Median 115,760.90$      137,332.50$      160,512.90$      132,801.95$      156,812.40$      184,023.94$      

Homes for Good Communications Director 83,882.40$      97,104.48$      112,410.48$    12% 3,400.00$    97,348.29$     112,157.02$   129,299.74$   
% Difference from Mean -39.55% -43.17% -43.82% -38.35% -42.89% -43.73%

% Difference from Median -38.00% -41.43% -42.79% -36.42% -39.82% -42.32%

Retirement Other

Organization Title BENCHMARK Y/N MIN MID MAX MIN MID MAX NOTES

Lane County Government Housing Program Manager N30001D Y 96,366.40$       118,955.20$      141,668.80$      12% 3,000.00$      110,930.37$      136,229.82$      161,669.06$      
City of Eugene Grade 10 Asst Mgr N 115,897.60$      136,177.60$      156,457.60$      12% 3,000.00$      132,805.31$      155,518.91$      178,232.51$      
City of Springfield Senior Manager N 104,472.00$      125,366.50$      146,261.00$      12% 3,000.00$      120,008.64$      143,410.48$      166,812.32$      
Home Forward Director of Community Services Y 106,257.48$      138,132.79$      170,008.09$      12% -$  119,008.38$      154,708.72$      190,409.06$      
Housing Authority of Clackamas County Social Srvcs Division Dir NRP34 Y 111,951.80$      131,300.05$      150,648.30$      12% 50.00$  125,436.02$      147,106.06$      168,776.10$      
Salem Housing Authority Manager, HA III N 103,272.00$      121,035.18$      138,798.36$      12% 3,922.56$      119,587.20$      139,481.96$      159,376.72$      
Washington County Housing Authority HHS Division Manager N 118,799.54$      131,578.36$      144,357.17$      12% -$  133,055.48$      147,367.76$      161,680.03$      
Housing Authority of Jackson County Director of Housing Programs Y 107,206.00$      129,027.50$      150,849.00$      12% -$  120,070.72$      144,510.80$      168,950.88$      
Milliman Public Sector Survey No Comparable

Mean 108,027.85$      128,946.65$      149,881.04$      122,612.76$      146,041.81$      169,488.33$      
Median 106,731.74$      130,163.78$      148,454.65$      120,039.68$      145,808.43$      167,794.21$      

Homes for Good Supportive Housing Director 94,250.28$      109,106.52$    126,304.44$    12% 3,400.00$    108,960.31$   125,599.30$   144,860.97$   
% Difference from Mean -14.62% -18.18% -18.67% -12.53% -16.28% -17.00%

% Difference from Median -13.24% -19.30% -17.54% -10.17% -16.09% -15.83%

Retirement Other

Organization Title BENCHMARK Y/N MIN MID MAX MIN MID MAX NOTES

Lane County Government Housing Program Manager N30001D Y 96,366.40$       119,017.60$      141,668.80$      12% 3,000.00$      110,930.37$      136,299.71$      161,669.06$      
City of Eugene Grade 10 Asst Mgr N 115,897.60$      136,177.60$      156,457.60$      12% 3,000.00$      132,805.31$      155,518.91$      178,232.51$      
City of Springfield Senior Manager N 104,472.00$      125,366.50$      146,261.00$      12% 3,000.00$      120,008.64$      143,410.48$      166,812.32$      
Home Forward Director of Housing Choice Voucher Program Y 106,257.48$      138,132.79$      170,008.09$      12% -$  119,008.38$      154,708.72$      190,409.06$      
Housing Authority of Clackamas County Social Srvcs Division Dir NRP34 Y 111,591.80$      131,120.05$      150,648.30$      12% 50.00$  125,032.82$      146,904.46$      168,776.10$      
Salem Housing Authority Manager, HA III N 103,272.00$      121,035.18$      138,798.36$      12% 3,922.56$      119,587.20$      139,481.96$      159,376.72$      
Washington County Housing Authority HHS Division Manager N 118,799.54$      131,578.36$      144,357.17$      12% -$  133,055.48$      147,367.76$      161,680.03$      
Housing Authority of Jackson County Section 8 Director Y 79,998.00$       96,282.00$       112,566.00$      12% -$  89,597.76$       107,835.84$      126,073.92$      
Milliman Public Sector Survey No Comparable

Mean 104,581.85$      124,838.76$      145,095.67$      118,753.24$      141,440.98$      164,128.71$      
Median 105,364.74$      128,243.28$      145,309.09$      119,797.92$      145,157.47$      164,246.18$      

Homes for Good Rent Assistance Director 94,250.28$      109,106.52$    126,304.44$    12% 3,400.00$    108,960.31$   125,599.30$   144,860.97$   
% Difference from Mean -10.96% -14.42% -14.88% -8.99% -12.61% -13.30%

% Difference from Median -11.79% -17.54% -15.05% -9.95% -15.57% -13.38%

Retirement Other

Organization Title BENCHMARK Y/N MIN MID MAX MIN MID MAX NOTES

Lane County Government Assistant Department Director N2012 Y 115,627.20$      142,833.60$      170,040.00$      12% 3,000.00$      132,502.46$      162,973.63$      193,444.80$      
City of Eugene Grade 10 Asst Mgr N 115,897.60$      136,177.60$      156,457.60$      12% 3,000.00$      132,805.31$      155,518.91$      178,232.51$      
City of Springfield Executive Manager N 114,444.00$      137,332.50$      160,221.00$      12% 3,000.00$      131,177.28$      156,812.40$      182,447.52$      
Home Forward Chief Administrative Officer Y 126,239.02$      164,104.90$      201,990.20$      12%
Housing Authority of Clackamas County Deputy Director of Public & Government Affairs NRP 36 N 136,926.40$      160,898.40$      184,870.40$      12% 50.00$  153,407.57$      180,256.21$      207,104.85$      
Salem Housing Authority Division Manager N 119,662.44$      140,233.62$      160,804.80$      12% 3,922.56$      137,944.49$      160,984.21$      184,023.94$      
Washington County Housing Authority Assistant Director of Housing Y 137,773.55$      156,783.33$      175,793.10$      12% -$  154,306.38$      175,597.32$      196,888.27$      
Housing Authority of Jackson County No comparable
Milliman Public Sector Survey Government Relations Manager N 136,344.00$      

Mean 123,795.74$      146,838.49$      172,882.44$      140,357.25$      165,357.12$      190,356.98$      
Median 119,662.44$      141,533.61$      170,040.00$      135,374.90$      161,978.92$      188,734.37$      

Homes for Good Deputy Director
% Difference from Mean

% Difference from Median

Retirement Other

Organization Title BENCHMARK Y/N MIN MID MAX MIN MID MAX NOTES

Lane County Government County Admin / Assistant County Admin N 158,683.20$      194,188.80$      233,937.60$      12% 3,000.00$      180,725.18$      220,491.46$      265,010.11$      used average of County Admin & Assistant County Admin
City of Eugene Assistant City Manager N 200,532.80$      220,188.80$      239,844.80$      12% 3,000.00$      227,596.74$      249,611.46$      271,626.18$      
City of Springfield Executive Manager Y 124,415.00$      149,298.50$      174,182.00$      12% 3,000.00$      142,344.80$      170,214.32$      198,083.84$      
Home Forward Chief Operating Officer N 126,239.02$      164,114.61$      201,990.20$      12% -$  141,387.70$      183,808.36$      226,229.02$      
Housing Authority of Clackamas County Deputy Director of Public & Government Affairs NRP 36 N 136,926.40$      160,898.40$      184,870.40$      12% 50.00$  153,407.57$      180,256.21$      207,104.85$      
Housing Authority of Clackamas County Director Human Services NRP 40 N 149,544.66$      175,718.14$      201,891.62$      
Salem Housing Authority Assistant Director Y 125,715.24$      147,326.40$      168,937.56$      12% 3922.56 144,723.63$      168,928.13$      193,132.63$      
Washington County Housing Authority Director of Housing Services Y 152,039.04$      173,041.21$      194,043.38$      12% -$  170,283.72$      193,806.16$      217,328.59$      
Housing Authority of Jackson County Executive Director Y 143,666.00$      172,909.00$      202,152.00$      12% -$  160,905.92$      193,658.08$      226,410.24$      
Milliman Public Sector Survey Assistant City Manager N 168,022.40$      

Mean 146,417.93$      172,570.63$      200,205.51$      165,171.91$      195,096.77$      225,615.68$      
Median 143,666.00$      170,465.70$      201,891.62$      157,156.74$      188,733.22$      221,778.80$      

Homes for Good Executive Director 129,947.52$    150,430.56$    174,142.08$    12% 3,400.00$    148,941.22$   171,882.23$   198,439.13$   
% Difference from Mean -12.67% -14.72% -14.97% -10.90% -13.51% -13.70%

% Difference from Median -10.56% -13.32% -15.93% -5.52% -9.80% -11.76%

Executive Director
ANNUAL COMPENSATION ADJUSTED

Communications Director
ANNUAL COMPENSATION ADJUSTED

Supportive Housing Director
ANNUAL COMPENSATION ADJUSTED

Deputy Director
ANNUAL COMPENSATION ADJUSTED

Rent Assistance Director
ANNUAL COMPENSATION ADJUSTED

30



APPENDIX C - COMPA RATIO HEAT MAPAPPENDIX C - COMPA RATIO HEAT MAP
BEFOREBEFORE

Classification Group
Hourly Rate 

Median

% Compa 

Ratio - Lane 

County Govt

% Compa 

Ratio - City 

of Eugene

% Compa 

Ratio - City 

of 

Springfield

% Compa 

Ratio - 

Millman

% Compa 

Ratio - Home 

Forward

% Compa 

Ratio - 

Clackamas

% Compa 

Ratio - City 

of Salem

% Compa 

Ratio - WA 

County

% Compa 

Ratio - JCHA

% Compa 

Ratio - 

Median

ADA & HR Coordinator A 26.57$  92% 88% 89% 86% 84% 73% 91% 91% #DIV/0! 89%
Maintenance Services Supervisor B 32.92$  81% 85% 80% 76% 81% 74% 90% 61% 72% 80%
Property Manager B 32.92$  81% 72% 80% 86% 88% 71% 90% 61% #DIV/0! 81%
Rent Assistance Supervisor B 32.92$  81% 72% 80% 86% 81% 74% 90% 61% #DIV/0! 80%
Communications Specialist C 33.83$  83% 74% 96% 78% 88% 72% 79% 68% #DIV/0! 79%
Executive Support C 33.83$  107% 103% 96% 86% 107% 101% 98% 85% 108% 101%
PSH Supervisor D 34.56$  77% #DIV/0! 84% 90% 85% 74% 95% 64% #DIV/0! 84%

HR Generalist E 34.89$  86% 98% 99% 91% 93% 104% 98% 90% 101% 98%

Asset Manager F 36.98$  78% 74% 82% 79% 76% 75% 83% 78% 107% 78%

CAP Manager F 36.98$  82% 80% 82% 79% 83% 75% 83% 74% #DIV/0! 81%
Finance Manager F 36.98$  81% 74% 73% 68% 83% 71% 79% 71% #DIV/0! 73%
Portfolio Manager F 36.98$  81% 74% 73% 79% 76% 83% 83% 65% #DIV/0! 78%
Project Development Manager F 36.98$  81% 74% 73% 68% 76% 75% 79% 65% #DIV/0! 74%
Resident Services Manager F 36.98$  81% 74% 73% 79% 76% 91% 83% 65% #DIV/0! 78%
Finance Director H 44.04$  77% 67% 73% 75% 62% 77% 75% 69% 71% 73%
HR Director H 44.04$  85% 67% 73% 78% 62% 77% 75% 74% #DIV/0! 75%
IT Director H 44.04$  79% 67% 73% 72% 77% 70% 75% 71% #DIV/0! 73%
Communications Director I 46.68$  68% 71% 77% 71% 66% 68% 80% 72% #DIV/0! 71%
Real Estate Development Director I 46.68$  82% 67% 77% 70% 66% 78% 80% 73% 75% 75%
Rent Assistance Director J 52.46$  92% 76% 87% 79% 74% 83% 89% 77% 113% 83%
Supportive Housing Director J 52.46$  92% 76% 87% 79% 74% 83% 89% 77% 85% 83%
Executive Director K 72.32$  77% 69% 101% 90% 79% 89% 101% 78% 87% 87%

31



AFTERAFTER

Classification Group Hourly Rate

% Compa 

Ratio - Lane 

County Govt

% Compa 

Ratio - City 

of Eugene

% Compa 

Ratio - City 

of 

Springfield

% Compa 

Ratio - 

Millman

% Compa 

Ratio - Home 

Forward

% Compa 

Ratio - 

Clackamas

% Compa 

Ratio - City 

of Salem

% Compa 

Ratio - WA 

County

% Compa 

Ratio - JCHA

% Compa 

Ratio - 

Average

Payroll & HR Specialist A 30.10$  96% 77% 79% 95% 94% 99% 92% 94% 123% 94%
Maintenance Services Supervisor B 35.89$  88% 93% 87% 83% 88% 81% 98% 67% 79% 87%
Property Manager B 35.89$  88% 78% 87% 94% 96% 77% 98% 67% #DIV/0! 88%
Executive Support B 35.89$  114% 109% 102% 91% 114% 107% 104% 90% 115% 107%
HR Generalist C 37.04$  91% 104% 105% 97% 99% 111% 104% 96% 107% 104%
PSH Supervisor C 37.04$  82% #DIV/0! 90% 97% 91% 80% 101% 69% #DIV/0! 90%
Communications Specialist D 39.36$  97% 86% 111% 90% 103% 84% 92% 79% #DIV/0! 91%

Rent Assistance Supervisor D 39.36$  97% 86% 96% 103% 97% 89% 108% 73% #DIV/0! 96%

Asset Manager E 42.83$  91% 86% 95% 92% 88% 87% 96% 90% 124% 91%

CAP Manager E 42.83$  95% 93% 95% 92% 96% 87% 96% 86% #DIV/0! 94%
Portfolio Manager E 42.83$  94% 86% 85% 92% 88% 96% 96% 76% #DIV/0! 90%
Resident Services Manager E 42.83$  94% 86% 85% 92% 88% 105% 96% 76% #DIV/0! 90%
Finance Manager F 46.43$  102% 93% 92% 86% 104% 90% 99% 89% #DIV/0! 92%
Project Development Manager F 46.43$  102% 93% 92% 86% 96% 94% 99% 82% #DIV/0! 93%
Finance Director H 58.40$  102% 89% 97% 99% 82% 102% 99% 91% 94% 97%
HR Director H 58.40$  113% 89% 97% 104% 82% 102% 99% 98% #DIV/0! 99%
IT Director H 58.40$  104% 89% 97% 95% 101% 93% 99% 94% #DIV/0! 96%
Real Estate Development Director H 58.40$  102% 84% 97% 88% 82% 97% 99% 91% 94% 94%
Rent Assistance Director H 58.40$  102% 84% 97% 88% 82% 93% 99% 86% 126% 93%
Supportive Housing Director H 58.40$  102% 84% 97% 88% 82% 93% 99% 86% 94% 93%
Communications Director H 58.40$  85% 89% 97% 89% 82% 85% 99% 90% #DIV/0! 89%
Deputy Director I 70.09$  102% 107% 106% 107% 83% 91% 106% 86% #DIV/0! 104%
Executive Director J 84.63$  91% 80% 118% 105% 92% 105% 118% 91% 102% 102%

32



APPENDIX D - COMPARISONSAPPENDIX D - COMPARISONS
HEALTHHEALTH

RETIREMENTRETIREMENT

Agency
Employee Premium 

Share

Employer Premiums 

Share
Health Plan

General 

Coverage Level

Deductible - 

Individual

Deductible - 

Family 

OOP Max - 

Individual

OOP Max - 

Family

HSA/HRA/VEBA - 

Individual

HSA/HRA/VEBA - 

Family

Homes for Good 1 0% 100% Regence HDHP 80/20 1,700.00$       3,400.00$       3,400.00$       6,800.00$       1,700.00$       3,400.00$       
Homes for Good 2 0% 100% Kaiser HMO 80/20 -$  -$  1,500.00$       3,000.00$       -$  -$  
Home Forward 1 11% 89% Kaiser HMO 90/10 300.00$         600.00$         1,500.00$       3,000.00$       -$  -$  
Home Forward 2 11% 89% Providence PPO 80/20 300.00$         600.00$         2,300.00$       4,600.00$       -$  -$  
Clackamas County HACC 1 5% 95% Kaiser HMO 90/10 350.00$         700.00$         1,500.00$       3,000.00$       -$  -$  
Clackamas County HACC 2 5% 95% Providence PPO 1 80/20 1,000.00$       2,000.00$       3,000.00$       6,000.00$       -$  -$  
Clackamas County HACC 3 5% 95% Providence PPO 2 90/10 750.00$         1,500.00$       2,500.00$       500.00$         50.00$  50.00$  
City of Salem HA 1 0% 100% EBMS HDHP (Self-Insured) 80/20 1,500.00$       3,000.00$       6,350.00$       12,700.00$     1,352.64$       3,922.56$       
City of Salem HA 2 5% 95% EBMS PPO (Self-Insured) 80/20 250.00$         750.00$         1,250.00$       3,750.00$       -$  -$  
City of Salem HA 3 5% 95% Kaiser HMO 80/20 250.00$         750.00$         1,250.00$       3,750.00$       -$  -$  
Washington County 1 10% 90% Kaiser HMO (High Ded) 80/20 750.00$         1,500.00$       1,100.00$       2,200.00$       -$  -$  
Washington County 2 10% 90% Kaiser HMO (Low Ded) 80/20 250.00$         500.00$         600.00$         1,200.00$       -$  -$  
Washington County 3 10% 90% Providence PPO (High Ded) 80/20 1,250.00$       3,750.00$       5,950.00$       8,850.00$       -$  -$  
Washington County 4 10% 90% Providence PPO (Low Ded) 80/20 500.00$         1,500.00$       2,200.00$       6,600.00$       -$  -$  
Jackson County Housing Authority 0% 100% Regence PPO 80/20 2,000.00$       6,000.00$       7,150.00$       14,300.00$     -$  -$  
Lane County Government $20 / $70 remainder HDHP 80/20 1,500.00$       3,000.00$       3,000.00$       6,000.00$       1,500.00$       3,000.00$       
Lane County Government 2 $30 / $50 remainder PPO 80/20 250.00$         750.00$         2,000.00$       6,000.00$       -$  -$  
Lane County Government 3 $50 / $70 remainder Copay Plan 80/20 -$  -$  1,500.00$       4,500.00$       -$  -$  
City of Eugene 1 9% 91% City Health 80/20 150.00$         450.00$         2,000.00$       2,000.00$       -$  -$  
City of Springfield 10% 90% PacificSource PPO 90/10 1,500.00$       3,000.00$       2,000.00$       4,000.00$       1,500.00$       3,000.00$       

Agency Structure ER Contribution EE Pick-up?
Total 

Contribution

Homes for Good 401(k) 6% Yes 12%
Home Forward PERS 6% Yes 12%
Clackamas County PERS 6% Yes 12%
City of Salem PERS 6% Yes 12%
Washington County PERS 6% Yes 12%

Jackson County Housing Authority PERS 6% Yes 12%
Lane County Government PERS 6% Yes 12%
City of Eugene PERS 6% Yes 12%
City of Springfield PERS 6% Yes 12%

Retirement benefit offered by Homes for Good and comparator agencies; the table below shows a comparison.

33



APPENDIX D - COMPARISONSAPPENDIX D - COMPARISONS
PAID TIME OFFPAID TIME OFF

STRUCTURESTRUCTURE

Total @ 10yrs

Sick Holiday
Personal

/other
Start 5 yrs 10 yrs 15 yrs 20 yrs 25 yrs

Homes for Good  - 13 1 26 28.5 31 33.5 36 38.5 45

Home Forward 13 12 3 10 15 17.5 20 22.5 25 45.5

Clackamas County 12 10 1.25 13 16.5 19.05 22.05 25.05 25.05 42.3

City of Salem 12 10 2 12 16.88 12.92 14.17 15 15.83 36.92

Washington County 12 10 1 12 15 18 21 24 24 41
Jackson County Housing Authority  - 10  - 10 10 12 14 24 30 22
Lane County Government  - 9 0 23 32 35 38 41 44 44
City of Eugene 12 11 0 19.88 24 20.875 27 31 34 43.875
City of Springfield  - 12  - 25 28 31 34 37 43 43

• Clackamas County splits time off between sick and vacation. Adds 10 hours personal time to vacation accrual. 

• City of Salem splits time off between sick and vacation. Adds two personal days to vacation accrual.

• Washington County splits time off between sick and vacation. Adds one personal day to vacation accrual. HA employees are not represented.

Paid leave offered by Homes for Good and comparator agencies; the table below shows the comparison. The total at 10-year mark includes sick, holiday, personal/other and vacation days available.

Agency

Days per year Vacation/PTO Days per Year

Agency Wage Structure Type Spread # of ranges/grades # of steps % Between steps
% between 

ranges/grades

Homes for Good Banded Step & Grade ~28% 25 6 5% no set %

Home Forward Graded Range 50% 13 NA NA 9%

Clackamas County Graded Range ~27% 24 NA NA ~10%

City of Salem Banded Step & Grade ~22% 11 6 4% no set %

Washington County Banded Step & Grade ~22% 180  5 - 6 5% ~16%

Jackson County Housing Authority Banded Step & Grade ~40% 8 8 5% 34%

Lane County Government Banded Step & Grade ~43% 113 9 4-6% no set %

City of Eugene Banded Step & Grade ~29% 162 10 3-4% no set %

City of Springfield Banded Step & Grade ~40% 21 9 5% no set %

A comparison of compensation structures was conducted for Homes for Good and comparator Agencies for represented positions. The following table reflects the results. 

34



APPENDIX D - COMPARISONSAPPENDIX D - COMPARISONS
LONGEVITYLONGEVITY

Agency Wage Structure Type Spread # of ranges/grades # of steps % Between steps
% between 

ranges/grades

Homes for Good Banded Step & Grade ~28% 25 6 5% no set %

Home Forward Graded Range 50% 13 NA NA 9%

Clackamas County Graded Range ~27% 24 NA NA ~10%

City of Salem Banded Step & Grade ~22% 11 6 4% no set %

Washington County Banded Step & Grade ~22% 180  5 - 6 5% ~16%

Jackson County Housing Authority Banded Step & Grade ~40% 8 8 5% 34%

Lane County Government Banded Step & Grade ~43% 113 9 4-6% no set %

City of Eugene Banded Step & Grade ~29% 162 10 3-4% no set %

City of Springfield Banded Step & Grade ~40% 21 9 5% no set %

A comparison of compensation structures was conducted for Homes for Good and comparator Agencies for represented positions. The following table reflects the results. 

35



APPENDIX E - LEVELING MATRIXAPPENDIX E - LEVELING MATRIX

Classification Job Knowledge Responsibility/Autonomy Span of Control
Difficulty of 

Work
Rating Grade

HR & Payroll Specialist 2 2 1 2 1.75 A

Executive Support 3 3 1 3 2.5 B

Maintenance Services Supervisor 2 3 3 2 2.5 B

Property Manager 2 3 2 3 2.5 B

HR Generalist 3 2 2 3 2.5 C

PSH Supervisor 3 3 2 3 2.75 C

Communications Specialist 3 3.5 1 3 2.625 D

Rent Assistance Supervisor 3 2.5 2 3 2.625 D

Asset Manager 3 3 2 3 2.75 E

CAP Manager 3 3 2 3 2.75 E

Resident Services Manager 3 3 3 3 3 E

Portfolio Manager 3 3 3 3 3 E

Finance Manager 3 3 3 3.5 3.125 F

Project Development Manager 3 3 3 3.5 3.125 F

Energy Services Director 4 3.5 3 3 3.375 G

Finance Director 4 4 3 4 3.75 H

Real Estate Development Director 4 4 3 4 3.75 H

Rent Assistance Director 4 4 3 4 3.75 H

Supportive Housing Director 4 4 3 4 3.75 H

HR Director 4 4 4 4 4 H

IT Director 4 4 4 4 4 H

Communicatoins Director 4 4.5 4.25 4 4.1875 H

Deputy Director 4.5 5 4.5 4.5 4.625 I

Executive Director 5 5 5 5 5 J

Knowledge Responsibility Span of Control Difficulty of Work

Transaction, procedure driven

Complex tasks, required to 

troubleshoot
3

Medium sized team, or shared 

responsibility at generalist level

Moderate level of decision making 

authority - may supervise entry 

level staff

Average - 5 years of experience

Lowest - entry or near entry level1
Immediate Supervision. Relies 

mostly on SOPs
None. Does not supervise anyone

2
Moderate difficulty, still relying 

mostly on SOP

May Supervise/manage small 

team

Has some independent decision 

making authority, but mostly 

works from SOPs

below average - 2 years 

experience

5
Complex, difficult work. Strategic. 

Carries ultimate responsibility

Highest - executive span of 

control

Complete Autonomy - reports to 

governing body

Highest - expert knowledge 10+ 

years experience

4
Complex, difficult, strategic work - 

required to make decisions 

without SOP or clear solutions.

Large team or shared 

responsilibity for whole Agency

Mostly Autonomous - high level 

decision making authority

Near expert knowledge - 8+ yrs 

experience in subject matter

36



APPENDIX F - ENERGY SERVICES DIRECTOR COMPA RATIOSAPPENDIX F - ENERGY SERVICES DIRECTOR COMPA RATIOS

Classification Group Hourly Rate
% Compa 

Ratio - State

% Compa 

Ratio - 

County

% Compa 

Ratio - 

Comm 

Service 

Consortium

% Compa 

Ratio - 

Clackamas

% Compa 

Ratio - UCAN

% Compa 

Ratio - WA 

County

% Compa 

Ratio - 

Average

Energy Services Director Current G 38.99$  100% 102% 111% 89% 102% 69% 90%

Energy Services Director Post Recommendation G 52.02$  133% 136% 149% 119% 136% 92% 120%

37



Accommodations Coordinator

Asset Manager

Capital Projects Manager

Communications Specialist

Deputy Director

Energy Services Director

Executive Assistant

Executive Director

Finance Director

Finance Manager

Human Resources Director

Human Resources Generalist

IT Director

Maintenance Services Supervisor

Payroll & HR Specialist

Portfolio Manager

Project Development Manager

Property Manager

Permanent Supportive Housing (PSH) Supervisor

Real Estate Development Director

Rent Assistance Division Director

Rent Assistance Supervisor

Resident Services Manager

Supportive Housing Director

APPENDIX G: JOB DESCRIPTIONSAPPENDIX G: JOB DESCRIPTIONS

38

https://hacsaus-my.sharepoint.com/:f:/g/personal/bmceuen_homesforgood_org/EvuymJIdhytNmR7JEbuhyzoBaIH15oEp2ss_447mJbXDCQ?e=tiOPU4
https://hacsaus-my.sharepoint.com/:f:/g/personal/bmceuen_homesforgood_org/EvuymJIdhytNmR7JEbuhyzoBaIH15oEp2ss_447mJbXDCQ?e=tiOPU4
https://hacsaus-my.sharepoint.com/:f:/g/personal/bmceuen_homesforgood_org/EvuymJIdhytNmR7JEbuhyzoBaIH15oEp2ss_447mJbXDCQ?e=tiOPU4
https://hacsaus-my.sharepoint.com/:f:/g/personal/bmceuen_homesforgood_org/EvuymJIdhytNmR7JEbuhyzoBaIH15oEp2ss_447mJbXDCQ?e=tiOPU4
https://hacsaus-my.sharepoint.com/:f:/g/personal/bmceuen_homesforgood_org/EvuymJIdhytNmR7JEbuhyzoBaIH15oEp2ss_447mJbXDCQ?e=tiOPU4
https://hacsaus-my.sharepoint.com/:f:/g/personal/bmceuen_homesforgood_org/EvuymJIdhytNmR7JEbuhyzoBaIH15oEp2ss_447mJbXDCQ?e=tiOPU4
https://hacsaus-my.sharepoint.com/:f:/g/personal/bmceuen_homesforgood_org/EvuymJIdhytNmR7JEbuhyzoBaIH15oEp2ss_447mJbXDCQ?e=tiOPU4
https://hacsaus-my.sharepoint.com/:f:/g/personal/bmceuen_homesforgood_org/EvuymJIdhytNmR7JEbuhyzoBaIH15oEp2ss_447mJbXDCQ?e=tiOPU4
https://hacsaus-my.sharepoint.com/:f:/g/personal/bmceuen_homesforgood_org/EvuymJIdhytNmR7JEbuhyzoBaIH15oEp2ss_447mJbXDCQ?e=tiOPU4
https://hacsaus-my.sharepoint.com/:f:/g/personal/bmceuen_homesforgood_org/EvuymJIdhytNmR7JEbuhyzoBaIH15oEp2ss_447mJbXDCQ?e=tiOPU4
https://hacsaus-my.sharepoint.com/:f:/g/personal/bmceuen_homesforgood_org/EvuymJIdhytNmR7JEbuhyzoBaIH15oEp2ss_447mJbXDCQ?e=tiOPU4
https://hacsaus-my.sharepoint.com/:f:/g/personal/bmceuen_homesforgood_org/EvuymJIdhytNmR7JEbuhyzoBaIH15oEp2ss_447mJbXDCQ?e=tiOPU4
https://hacsaus-my.sharepoint.com/:f:/g/personal/bmceuen_homesforgood_org/EvuymJIdhytNmR7JEbuhyzoBaIH15oEp2ss_447mJbXDCQ?e=tiOPU4
https://hacsaus-my.sharepoint.com/:f:/g/personal/bmceuen_homesforgood_org/EvuymJIdhytNmR7JEbuhyzoBaIH15oEp2ss_447mJbXDCQ?e=tiOPU4
https://hacsaus-my.sharepoint.com/:f:/g/personal/bmceuen_homesforgood_org/EvuymJIdhytNmR7JEbuhyzoBaIH15oEp2ss_447mJbXDCQ?e=tiOPU4
https://hacsaus-my.sharepoint.com/:f:/g/personal/bmceuen_homesforgood_org/EvuymJIdhytNmR7JEbuhyzoBaIH15oEp2ss_447mJbXDCQ?e=tiOPU4
https://hacsaus-my.sharepoint.com/:f:/g/personal/bmceuen_homesforgood_org/EvuymJIdhytNmR7JEbuhyzoBaIH15oEp2ss_447mJbXDCQ?e=tiOPU4
https://hacsaus-my.sharepoint.com/:f:/g/personal/bmceuen_homesforgood_org/EvuymJIdhytNmR7JEbuhyzoBaIH15oEp2ss_447mJbXDCQ?e=tiOPU4
https://hacsaus-my.sharepoint.com/:f:/g/personal/bmceuen_homesforgood_org/EvuymJIdhytNmR7JEbuhyzoBaIH15oEp2ss_447mJbXDCQ?e=tiOPU4
https://hacsaus-my.sharepoint.com/:f:/g/personal/bmceuen_homesforgood_org/EvuymJIdhytNmR7JEbuhyzoBaIH15oEp2ss_447mJbXDCQ?e=tiOPU4
https://hacsaus-my.sharepoint.com/:f:/g/personal/bmceuen_homesforgood_org/EvuymJIdhytNmR7JEbuhyzoBaIH15oEp2ss_447mJbXDCQ?e=tiOPU4
https://hacsaus-my.sharepoint.com/:f:/g/personal/bmceuen_homesforgood_org/EvuymJIdhytNmR7JEbuhyzoBaIH15oEp2ss_447mJbXDCQ?e=tiOPU4
https://hacsaus-my.sharepoint.com/:f:/g/personal/bmceuen_homesforgood_org/EvuymJIdhytNmR7JEbuhyzoBaIH15oEp2ss_447mJbXDCQ?e=tiOPU4
https://hacsaus-my.sharepoint.com/:f:/g/personal/bmceuen_homesforgood_org/EvuymJIdhytNmR7JEbuhyzoBaIH15oEp2ss_447mJbXDCQ?e=tiOPU4


TABLES & FIGURESTABLES & FIGURES

Tables
Table 1: Cost of Labor

Table 2: Current Internal Placement

Table 3: Heat Map of Compa Ratios - Current

Table 4: Recommended Internal Placement

Table 5: Recommended Salary Schedule 

Table 6: Heat Map of Compa Ratios - Post Recommendation

13

14

15

19

21

22

Figures
Figure 1: CPI-U Western Region 12 Month Change

Figure 2: Staffing Levels 2018 - Current

Figure 3: Cash Compensation Scatter Plot Comparison

5

6

16

39



WORKS CITED & SOURCE DOCUMENTSWORKS CITED & SOURCE DOCUMENTS

https://www.bls.gov/opub/hom/topic/distribution-statistics.htm

https://www.bls.gov/regions/west/news-release/consumerpriceindex_west.htm

https://www.erieri.com/blog/post/what-is-the-difference-between-median-and-

mean-salary

https://www.erieri.com/geographicassessor

Article: A major IT skills gap exists in government

Article: Filling the Federal Tech Talent Pipeline

Pager, D.,  Pedulla, D. (2015). Race, Self-Reflection, and the Job Search Process.

American Journal of Sociology. 120 (4), 1005 - 1054. 10.1086/681072. 

Source Document - Final Workbook

Report - FTE by Year

Milliman 2023 Public Sector Salary Survey Results

40

https://www.bls.gov/opub/hom/topic/distribution-statistics.htm
https://www.bls.gov/regions/west/news-release/consumerpriceindex_west.htm
https://www.erieri.com/blog/post/what-is-the-difference-between-median-and-mean-salary
https://www.erieri.com/blog/post/what-is-the-difference-between-median-and-mean-salary
https://www.erieri.com/geographicassessor
https://federalnewsnetwork.com/commentary/2023/01/a-major-it-skills-gap-exists-in-government-learning-from-other-sectors-may-help/
https://hacsaus-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/bmceuen_homesforgood_org/EaavxQhPBIBChlzw7AJuMpYBLPdnUT7glrEaOvs6_E-_eQ?e=A8lFuX
https://hacsaus-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/bmceuen_homesforgood_org/EaavxQhPBIBChlzw7AJuMpYBLPdnUT7glrEaOvs6_E-_eQ?e=A8lFuX
https://hacsaus-my.sharepoint.com/:x:/g/personal/bmceuen_homesforgood_org/EXlGHTUIgY1PkgO_Ts3dCf8BHgfr6ujBl79a0SBVAUW1dA?e=wPV46v
https://hacsaus-my.sharepoint.com/:x:/g/personal/bmceuen_homesforgood_org/EVLwR-IM4E1NnahiVX2nJZ4BH-VJIT-bOsseS_T7tqaEqg?e=5fQ4CY
https://hacsaus-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/bmceuen_homesforgood_org/EZ_EXCCT_zVBhRExCrr7OoQBDRtQkcYFfUsEz-PO1xC77g?e=AHh72t


 
 
 

IN THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE 

HOMES FOR GOOD HOUSING AGENCY, OF LANE COUNTY OREGON 

 

ORDER 23-25-10-02H In the Matter of Non-Represented 

Classification & Compensation Study and 

Recommendation  

 

WHEREAS, Homes for Good is committed to hiring, developing and retaining top talent.    

WHEREAS, Homes for Good has completed a comprehensive classification and 

compensation study. 

WHEREAS,  Homes for Good lags in terms of salary compensation for the majority of 

non-represented classifications.  

 

NOW IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED THAT:  

Recommended updates to the Salary Schedule as outlined in the 2023 Non-Represented 

Classification & Compensation Study be adopted and implemented. 

 

DATED this                day of                                             , 2023 

 

 

__________________________________________________   

Vice-Chair, Homes for Good Board of Commissioners   

__________________________________________________   

Secretary, Homes for Good Board of Commissioners   




	Non-Represented Class Comp Study.pdf
	Non_Represented_Class_Comp_Study_2023.pdf
	Non_Represented_Class_Comp_Study_2023.pdf
	Non_Represented_Class_Comp_Study_2023.pdf
	Non_Represented_Class_Comp_Study_2023.pdf
	Non_Represented_Class_Comp_Study_2023.pdf
	Non_Represented_Class_Comp_Study_2023.pdf
	Non_Represented_Class_Comp_Study_2023.pdf
	Non_Represented_Class_Comp_Study_2023.pdf
	Non_Represented_Class_Comp_Study_2023.pdf
	final final.pdf
	Non_Represented_Class_Comp_Study_2023.pdf
	almost done.pdf
	5th draft.pdf
	1 fourth draft almost done.pdf
	Non-Represented ClassComp Study (9).pdf












	Non-Represented ClassComp Study (16).pdf
	Non_Represented_Class_Comp_Study_2023
	Non_Represented_Class_Comp_Study_2023
	Non_Represented_Class_Comp_Study_2023.pdf
	Non_Represented_Class_Comp_Study_2023.pdf
	Non_Represented_Class_Comp_Study_2023.pdf
	Non_Represented_Class_Comp_Study_2023.pdf
	Non_Represented_Class_Comp_Study_2023.pdf
	final final.pdf
	Non_Represented_Class_Comp_Study_2023.pdf
	almost done.pdf
	5th draft.pdf
	1 fourth draft almost done.pdf
	Third Draft with Appendix A_F.pdf
	Study - 2nd Draft.pdf
	first draft download.pdf
	Non-Represented ClassComp Study (6).pdf













	4.pdf
	Non_Represented_Class_Comp_Study_2023
	Non_Represented_Class_Comp_Study_2023.pdf
	Non_Represented_Class_Comp_Study_2023.pdf
	Non_Represented_Class_Comp_Study_2023

	Non_Represented_Class_Comp_Study_2023
	Non_Represented_Class_Comp_Study_2023


	Non_Represented_Class_Comp_Study_2023
	Non_Represented_Class_Comp_Study_2023
	Non_Represented_Class_Comp_Study_2023
	Non_Represented_Class_Comp_Study_2023.pdf
	final final.pdf
	Non_Represented_Class_Comp_Study_2023.pdf
	almost done.pdf
	5th draft.pdf
	1 fourth draft almost done.pdf
	Third Draft with Appendix A_F.pdf
	Study - 2nd Draft.pdf
	Non-Represented ClassComp Study (8).pdf









	Non_Represented_Class_Comp_Study_2023






	18.pdf
	Non_Represented_Class_Comp_Study_2023
	Non_Represented_Class_Comp_Study_2023
	Non_Represented_Class_Comp_Study_2023
	Non_Represented_Class_Comp_Study_2023
	Non_Represented_Class_Comp_Study_2023
	Non_Represented_Class_Comp_Study_2023
	Non_Represented_Class_Comp_Study_2023
	Non_Represented_Class_Comp_Study_2023.pdf
	final final.pdf
	Non_Represented_Class_Comp_Study_2023.pdf
	almost done.pdf
	5th draft.pdf
	1 fourth draft almost done.pdf
	Third Draft with Appendix A_F.pdf
	Study - 2nd Draft.pdf
	first draft download
	Non-Represented ClassComp Study (6)

















	17 (6).pdf
	Non_Represented_Class_Comp_Study_2023
	Non_Represented_Class_Comp_Study_2023
	Non_Represented_Class_Comp_Study_2023
	Non_Represented_Class_Comp_Study_2023
	Non_Represented_Class_Comp_Study_2023
	Non_Represented_Class_Comp_Study_2023
	Non_Represented_Class_Comp_Study_2023
	page 21 internal placement rec.pdf
	Non_Represented_Class_Comp_Study_2023
	Non_Represented_Class_Comp_Study_2023
	Non_Represented_Class_Comp_Study_2023.pdf
	final final.pdf
	Non_Represented_Class_Comp_Study_2023.pdf
	almost done.pdf
	5th draft.pdf
	1 fourth draft almost done.pdf
	Third Draft with Appendix A_F.pdf
	Study - 2nd Draft.pdf
	first draft download
	page 23 schedule b.pdf












	Non_Represented_Class_Comp_Study_2023
	Non_Represented_Class_Comp_Study_2023
	Non_Represented_Class_Comp_Study_2023
	Non-Represented ClassComp Study (14).pdf

	Page 24 blank landscape.pdf
	Non_Represented_Class_Comp_Study_2023
	Non_Represented_Class_Comp_Study_2023
	final final.pdf
	Non_Represented_Class_Comp_Study_2023
	almost done.pdf
	5th draft.pdf
	1 fourth draft almost done.pdf
	Third Draft with Appendix A_F.pdf
	Appendix A - Recommended Schedule B.pdf














	28_32.pdf
	34_35.pdf
	Non_Represented_Class_Comp_Study_2023
	Non_Represented_Class_Comp_Study_2023
	Non_Represented_Class_Comp_Study_2023
	Non_Represented_Class_Comp_Study_2023
	Non_Represented_Class_Comp_Study_2023
	Non_Represented_Class_Comp_Study_2023
	Non_Represented_Class_Comp_Study_2023
	Non_Represented_Class_Comp_Study_2023
	final final
	Non_Represented_Class_Comp_Study_2023
	almost done.pdf
	5th draft.pdf
	1 fourth draft almost done.pdf
	Third Draft with Appendix A_F.pdf
	Appendix D - Comparisons.pdf
	App D page 1










	Non_Represented_Class_Comp_Study_2023
	Non_Represented_Class_Comp_Study_2023
	Non_Represented_Class_Comp_Study_2023
	final final
	Non_Represented_Class_Comp_Study_2023
	almost done.pdf
	5th draft.pdf
	1 fourth draft almost done.pdf
	Third Draft with Appendix A_F.pdf
	Appendix D - Comparisons.pdf
	App D page 2
	App D page 3










	Appendix E - Leveling Matrix.pdf
	Non_Represented_Class_Comp_Study_2023
	Non_Represented_Class_Comp_Study_2023
	Non_Represented_Class_Comp_Study_2023
	final final
	Non_Represented_Class_Comp_Study_2023
	almost done.pdf
	5th draft.pdf
	1 fourth draft almost done.pdf
	Third Draft with Appendix A_F.pdf
	Appendix F - Energy Services Director Comps.pdf






	Non-Represented ClassComp Study (13).pdf
	final final
	Non_Represented_Class_Comp_Study_2023
	almost done.pdf
	5th draft
	Non-Represented ClassComp Study (10).pdf


	Non-Represented ClassComp Study (12).pdf















